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1. Identification and contact information

Name: PETROTRANS, s.r.o.

Registered office: Praha 8, Stfelni&nd 2221/50, PSC: 182 00

Company number: 25123041

Legal form: public limited company

Statutory Representatives: Pawe! tamacz, Dawid Durawa, Toma$ Sedlak
The Supervisory Board was not established

Incorporation registration: Municipal court in Prague section C file 124377
Phone: 283 882 733;

Fax: 283 882 734

E-mail: petrotrans@petrotrans.cz

hitp: www.petrotrans.cz

Share capital: 16.000.000,- CZK

In the share capital there are no decisions and still unrealized or unregistered changes.

The company is part of the ORLEN Unipetrol Group, where is the managing company ORLEN
Unlpetrol a.s.. ORLEN Unipetrol a.s. has registered office Milevské 2095/5, Praha 4, 140 00,
company number: 616 72 190. ORLEN Unipetrol a.s. is a part of the group Polski Koncern Naftowy
ORLEN S.A. based Chemikéw, Plock, Poland.

The company was owned by two partners — ORLEN Unipetrol RPA s.r.o. with registered office at
Litvinov - Zaluf 1, Corporate ID: 275 97 075, (owning a share of the corresponding contribution
to the registered capital of the company amounting to 15,900,000,- CZK} and ORLEN Unipetrol a.s.
with registered office at Milevskd 2095/5, 140 00 Praha 4, Corporate ID: 616 72 190, {owning a
share of the corresponding contribution to the registered capital of the company amounting to
100,000, CZK).

PETROTRANS, s.r.o did not acquire any share of the managing company in the year 2020.
The separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial

Reporting Standards ({FRSs) and their interpretations approved by the International Accounting
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Standards Board (IASB) which were adopted by the European Union {(EU) and were In force as at
31% December 2020. The English language version of PETROTRANS' Annual Report 2020 is a
convenience translation. The version in the Czech language Is the definitive version.

2. Company profile and other Information

Organizational units of the company are located exclusively in the Czech Republic, the Company
has no organizational unit abroad.

The company Is not active in research and development. In the area of fabor relations or in the
field of ecalogy not entail any specific obligation to soclety.

PETROTRANS, s.r.0. s engaged In the special tank transportation of liquld combustible substances.

For various business partners the company provides the supply of petrol stations for retall and
deliveries for wholesale companies, mainly in the Czech Republic and Slovakia. The company did
not trade the transported products.

Financial situation of the company was very good. PETROTRANS, s.r.0 met Its obligation to the
third parties and employees in required periods. This way intends to continue in 2020.

Prague 23* February 2021

| Signature of statutory representatives

v 1
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Pav-;el t.’hmaé Tomas Sedldk (- Dawid Durawa
Statptunyﬁ’epresentatlve Statutory Representative Statutory Representative
[
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INTRODUCTORY DATA

Audited entity

PETROTRANS, s.1.0.

Seated Praha 8, Stfelniénd 2221, PSC 182 00
1C: 251 23 041

Subject of enterprise:

domestic freight transport

Audit Report receiver

shareholders after a discussion with a statutory representative of the audited entity

Subject of the audit

Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 — accounting period 1.1.2020 -
31.12.2020

Audit dates
interim: 29.10.2020 — 9.11.2020
final: 13.1.2021 —23.2.2021

Audit performed and Audit Report prepared by

22HLAV sro.

Viebofick4 82/2, Usti nad Labem
Audit firm licence No. 277
Member of MSI Global Alliance,
Legal & Accounting Firms

responsible auditor: Ing. Miroslava NebuZelské, Auditor licence No. 2092

22HLAY s.r.0., ID 64052907, Registered as C 10016 at the Regional Court in UL, CACR license no. 277, CTACR license
main office: Vieboficka 82/2, 40001 Usti nad Labem, branch office: Doudlebskd 1699/5, 14000 Pragus 4
Tel.: +420 474745134, +420 230 234 554, E-mail; » Web:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
for the shareholders of PETROTRANS, s.r.0.

Financial Statements Audit Report

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PETROTRANS, s.r.o. (hereinafter also the “Company™)
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the European
Union, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the income
statement and statement of other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. For details of the
Company, see Note 1 to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of PETROTRANS, s.r.o. as at 31 December 2020, and of its financial performance and
its cash flows for the year then emded in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as endorsed by the European Union,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors, Regulation (EU) No. 5§37/2014 of
the European Parliament and the Council, and Auditing Standards of the Chamber of Auditors of the
Czech Republic, which are International Standards on Auditing (ISAs), as amended by the related
application clauses. Our responsibilities under this law and regulation are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the Code of Ethics adopted
by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

In compliance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, the other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and auditor’s report
thereon. The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, In connection with our
audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. In addition, we
assess whether the other information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with
applicable law or regulation, in particular, whether the other information complies with law or
regulation in terms of formal requirements and procedure for preparing the other information in the
context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with these requirements could influence
judgments made on the basis of the other information.

22HLAV s.r.0., 1D 64052907, Registered as C 10016 at the Regional Court in UL, CACR license no. 277, CTACR license
main office: Vicbokicks 82/2, 40001 Ust nad Labem, branch office: Doudlebské 1699/5, 14000 Prague 4
Tel.: +420 474745134, +420 230 234 554, E-mail: » Web:
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Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report that:

+ The other information describing the facts that are also presented in the financial statements
is, in all material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and

o The other information is prepared in compliance with applicable law or regulation.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of the Company
obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any material misstatement of fact.
Based on the procedures we have performed on the other information obtained, we have not identified
any material misstatement of fact.

Responsibilities of the Company’s Board of Directors and for the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as endorsed by the
European Union and for such internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above law or regulation, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal controi relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on

22HLAY s.r.0., ID 64052907, Registered as C 10016 et the Regional Court in UL, CACR license no. 277, CTACR license
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the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Compairy to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

22HLAYV s.r.0.

Member of MSI Global Alliance, Legal & Accounting Firms

Vieboficka 82/2, 400 01 Usti nad Labem Ing. Miroslava NebuZelskd
Audit firm licence No. 277 Auditors licence No. 2092
23" February 2021 . /

. Digitaln& podepsal Ing.
Ing- M|r05|ava Miroslava NebuZelské

z Datum: 2021.02.23
Nebuielska 09:49:05 +01'00

This Auditor's Report includes the following attachments:

1 Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended 31.12.2020
2 Statement of financial position as of 31.12.2020

3, Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31.12.2020

4 Statement of cash flow for the year ended 31.12.2020

5 Notes for the year ended 31.12.2020

This Audit Report is a transtation of the Czech Audit Report for the audit of the 2020 financial
statements

22HLAYV s.r.0., [D 64052907, Registered as C 10016 at the Regional Court in UL, CACR license no. 277, CTACR license
main office: Vieboticks 82/2, 40001 Usti nad Labem, branch office: Doudlebska 1699/5, 14000 Prague 4
Tel.: +420 474745134, +420 230 234 554, E-mail: , Web:
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PETROTRANS, s.1.0.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of CZK)
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PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {in thousands of CZK)

Statement of profit or loss and oﬂur eomprohennlve incoma

(ST e Dl hapeaR . R ) (RN 1
‘Statemant of profits or loas
Revenues 3 315568 339603
Cost of salse 4 _(253 883) (293 540)
Gross profit on sales 61883 46
Distribution expensss (28 857) (22 268)
Administrative expanses (7 038) {7 550)
Other cperating Income &1 4984 7613
_Other opersting expenses 52 (1393) (e12).
Profit from operations 20350 23148
Finance income [y o -
Fingnce cosis 6. {2884) (2802)
Net finance costs {2 603) {2 002)
Profit Inhnll: _ __2eT84 20 254
Tax expense 4 (5087). Baa)
Netproit il 18400
Other comprehansive Incoms
Htems which will not ba reciassified subsacuantly into profit or loss [ ] 3
Aciuarial gains and lossss T 7 4
Daferred tax 72 _in )
8 3
Tohl nu eunpuhmllw Imomo 21683 16412

The separate finenclal statements are o be read In conjunction with the notes farming part of tha saparata financlel statements set oul on pages & lo 38.

‘ x
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PETROTRANS, a.r.0.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {In thousands of CZK)
Statement of financial position
ol ' _ Mow  mzax M 3taZaom
ASSETS '
Non-curvent aseets
Proparty, plant and equipmant a 148 a7 133730
Intangible asssts a 1643 1228
Right of use ssssia 17.1. 44776 32 082
1w 167 913
Currant assels
Tiade and other receivables 10 85 004 43109
Cumant tax assels M7 165
Cash and cash equivalents 12, 1497 1870
L) N
Tolal seasts i 21430
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share oapital 13.1, 18 000 16 000
Ratsined samings 132 67 269 86 688
Total equity 108 &1 600
LIABILITIES
Non-cusrent lishiltties
Provisions 14, 200 292
Defarred tax kabiides 7.2 64616 2411
Lease Eabltiss 17.1. 40 080 28057
40044 31 300
Cusrent |nbiNties
Trade and other Eabiitties 15 36 520 50 450
Provisions 14 70 48
Loaso Rabilities 17.1. 5004 4 808
Other financisl Esbiities 18. 45736 48117
88 230 101 458
Tolal Rebiitiss 135174 132783
Total equity and Rabllities 238 483 a3

The saparate financisl atwismaents ane to be read In conjunction with the notes forming part of the separats financial statements sat out on prges 8 40 30,



PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (In thousands of CZK)

Staternent of changes In equity

Total egpdliy

01/01/2020 T 16000 85 596 81608

Net profit - 21687 21687
ltams of othar comprehansive income . ] ]
Total net comprehensive income - 2 003 21009
31/12/2020 16 000 o7 m 103 289
01/01/201¢ 16 000 49184 65 164
Net profit - 16 408 18409
liams of other comprahensive Income - 3 3
Total ot comprehansive income - 16412 16412
31!12!301! 10 000 45 508 81 088

The separate financis: atelements are to be read In conjunction with the netes forming part of the separate financisl stelemants set out on pages & to 38.

: <
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PETROTRANS, s.r.o.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {In thousands of CZK)
Statement of cash flows
: ote 2030 gy
Gesh flows from opersting acliviies -
Pyofit before tex 26784 20254
Adusimenis for: 4.8,0 -
Depracistion and amortissiion .} 28897 2288
Intevest and dividends, net 2819 2509
Profit on investing solivities {1 406) {8 620)
Change in provisions 87 -]
Other sdjustments - 1788
Change In working caphsl (12 504)_ 2081
Rocalvabios 1435 1674
Liehilties (13 839) bor
Income tex (pakd) 7.3 421 (4 981)
Not omsh from operating activities 44 308 37 008
Cash flows from investing activities
isition of and Inta assals
B Acoaey, M el s, 884 (o430
mzmm , plant and squipmant and Intangible sseets 2783 6985
Net cash used in investing activities (33 201) {47 411)
Gash flows from financing activitias
Mm)ﬂmu—hmlhblll- (307) 10 480
nisrest pald (2645) 2418
Pawmul’hblhemdlrhuugm (6 804) {7 801)
Nat cash from/used In financing activities oMy 42
Nat Incresse/{decrease} In cash and cash equivalents 1764 (000)
Cash and cash squivalants, beginning of the yesr 1676 2645
Cash and cash equivalants, end of the year 12 47 1678

The separste financial statements are to ba resd In conjunction with the notes forming pert of the separste financie! stalements set out on pagss & fo 20.

T .{‘ ‘
CI1E0 Unipetrol



PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {In thousands of CZK)

1. Description of the Company

Estabiishment of the Company
PETROTRANS, s.r.0. (the “Company”) is & Czech limited liability company that was incorporated on 21 Aprll 1687,

Identification number of the Compeny
25123 041

Reglstered office of the Company
PETROTRANS, s.r.o.

Stelnitnd 2221/50

182 00 Prague 8

Czech Republic

Principal activities

The principal business activity of the Company Is roed freight transport.

Other activities are:

production and processing of fuels and lubricants,

brokering services,

purchase of goods for resale and sale,

repair services for the operation of motorlzed road transport and consuitancy in the field of road traneport,
road passenger traneport,

lease and rent of movables.

Share caplial and ownership struciure
The Company's share capltal amounts fo CZK 16,000 thousand. The majority shareholder of the Company Is ORLEN
Unipetrol RPA s.r.0. with share of 83.4%. There were no changes In the ownership structure during 2020. The Information

about rebranding of shareholders is presented under note 24,

Statulory repressniativea of the company

Statutory representatives of the Company as at 31 December 2020 were as follows: e L s
5,&1..”1:}:_ S—_ —_— — =-—,,%,:._.'_ T — e e
Statutory representativa Pawel Lamacz
Statulory repressnteiive Dawid Durawe
Statulory representatve Tomil Sediik

Thers were no changes In the statutory representatives during 2020,
Each statutory representative acts independenily on behalf of the Company.

Group identification and consolidation

The Company is part of the consolidation group of ORLEN Unipetrol a.s, ("the Group”). Pursuant to section 82(2) of Dacree
No. 50072002 Coll., the financlal statements of the Company and of all entities congolidated by ORLEN Unlipetrol a.s, have
been included in the consolidated financia! statements of ORLEN Unipstrol a.s. with iis registered office at Prague 4, Milevska
2085/5, 140 00, ID No. 616 72 190.

2. Principles of preparation of financlal statements

The separate financial statements have been prepered in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs) an thelr Intarpratations approved by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board {IASB) which were adopted by
the European Unlon (EU) and were in force as at 31 December 2020. The financial statements have besn prepered based
on historical cost, excapt for derivatives, financial instruments st fair value through profil and loss, finandlal assets avallable
for sale, and investment properties stated at falr value.

The ssparate financial statements are compllant with all requirements of IFRSs adopted by the EU and present a true and
fair view of the Company’s financial poslition as at 31 Dacember 2020, results of lis operations and cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The saparate financial statements have been prepared on a going concem basis. As at the date of approval of the
:uhmmm' there ls no uncertainty thet the Company will not be able {o continue s & going concem In the foreaseable

re.

The ssparate financlal statements, except for the statement of cash flows, a
Applied accounting policies area listed in note 21.3.

red on the accrual basis of accounting.
HEN}'(«




PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {in thougands of CZK)

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Revenuss

Revenues from salos of finished goods and services, nat 916 506 330009
reveniue from conirects with cuslomers 316 660 330 576
exoluded from soope of IFRS 15 - 20

Revenues from contrects with customers arlsing from transport of fusis and lubricants amounted to CZK 315 666 thousand.

m?:}ganyhuommmwmwdumrmmmmdmdmuummumdofw&ﬁofmwmmn
roup.

3 Revenuss by geographical division — disclosed by customer’s premises countries

Reverus from coniracts with cusiomers 316 568 39
Gaeoh Republic 204 570 Jra 72
Siovekia 30008 22 825

axciuded from scope of IFRS 15 - 28
Crouh Republic - 26

3s 568 W0

32 Ravenues from contracts with customers by fype of confract

Baved on fixed prics contracts 35568 3570
B see

3 Ravenues from contracts with customars by date of transfer

Al point of tme .
Over time 316 508 330078

@ L]
EITE0 Unipetrol



PETROTRANS, s.1.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL 8TATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {in thousands of CZK}

4.2. Cost by nature

Malerials and energy =~ {83 216} (77 088)
External services {42 488) {70838)
Employee benefits (128 228) {128 858)
Cepreciation and amortisation {28 837) (22 268)
Taxea and charges {18 978) (17 483)
Other {o438) (7 879)
Opersiing sxpenses {201 171) (323 970)
Distribuion expanses 28 857 22 268
Adminisiraiive expanses 7038 7080
Other cperating expanses _. 1508 .
Cost of sales {263 £83) {293 540)

43.  Employes benefiis costs

Wages and salariss {91 825) (92 080)
Fulure bansfils axpansss (L14] (58)
Saclal ascurdly expenses (31022 (31 506)
Other employea benefils axpenses " PSR X1} Jfaaan)

(125 226) (128 956}

Future benefits expenses include change In provisions for jubilee bonuses and retirement benefits.

4.3.1. Employes banefiis coats - additional information

2020 CCL Lo e A T e THE T
Wages and salaries T @112

Soclal and heatth insuranca (2 354) (31 022)
Soclal expenss (1188) (5312)
Change of employes benefits provision RL I LA, ... 4 §
[','_!! 12)_ (12 883) {129 225)
Number of amployees average per yaar 157 T T TTTTTie0
Numbsr of employses as st balance shest day R | S - . 1

Wages and salarles

Soclal and health insurance
Social expense
(Change of emplayee benefits provigion ) -
. . [117!1-) (_1105_2! gﬁm
‘Number of amployees average per yoar 150 3 108
Number of employses as at belance sheetday —— 183, .3 158
8. Other operating Income and expesnses

5.1. Other opearating iIncome

Preiit on sale of non-current non-inancisl assts ' Y 72 8 GBg
Penalties and compansalions 1745 a75
Other ] )

____4 984 7513

5.2, Other operating expenses

'Losa on sale of non-current nen-financial asssts
Penalties and compenssations




PETROTRANS, a.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL BTATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of CZK)
8. Finance rasult
Intereat {2810) {2 508)
Foreign exchange gainfioss surpius ™ {201}
Other (65) (e2)
{2 00m) {2802)

7. Tax expsnse

Incoma tax expenise In the stetement of profit or loss
Cumment incoms tax (8s4) {2134)
Daferrad income tax {4 203) {(1711)
{5 007} (3 849)

Incoma tax axpenss In other comprehensive Incoms
Cther 4] {1)
{1} )
{8 008} (3My

Domestic Incoma tax Is calculated in accordance with the Czech tax regulations at the rate of 18% In 2020 (2015: 19%) of
mmmwlmmmm.mmmmmWmumappmedfnrmmm1
and forward |.e. .

71. Reconclliation of effective tax rate

Profit for the year 21687 10400
Total Income tax sxpense (5 007) (3848)
Proftt exckxding inoorme tex 28 754 20254
Incoma $ax using domestic Inoome tax rate (5 083) (3 848)
Non-deducibls expanssa (o4) (128)
Tax rofief 1 141
Total income tax sxpanse (5 0as) (3 048)
Effyciive tax rate 18.04% 10.90%

72,  Deforred tax

Deferned income tax results from future tax benefits and costs related io the differences between the tax basis of assets and
liabliites and the amounts reported In the financial statements. The dafared incoms texas have been calculated using the
tax rate expected to apply o pariods when the respective aeset is reallzed or llability Is saitied (I.e. 18% in 2021 and onward).

The movements In deferred tax fabllitise In 2020 were as follows:

. - Defprrad fan tacognized in
Mo et of Rroi oriess

‘Dafarred tar parogriond in —
Other compraliensive incama atA2020,

Property, plant and equipment 4686 3464 - 8140
Provisions (2178) 880 1 {1208)
Othar (08) (141) - {239)
2411 4 208 1 (1]
2411 4208 1 L 1) 0]

The movemants in defemed tax liabilities in 2018 ware as follows:

oat . = | I [ - _“.“. T I : . 1

Property, plant and equipment 2111 2674 - 4005
Provigions {1 411) (Te8) 1 @2178)
Othar - (08) - (98)
700 1™ 1 2411
700 1M1 1 2414
Defarred tax assete and llabillies are offsst when there Is legally enforcaablg ent tax assets against current
tax llabdiies and when the defarred taxes relate to the same tax authority
" {\.



PETROTRANS, a.r.o.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {In thousands of CZK}

7.3. incomo tax {pald}

Tax expansa on profit before tax (5087) SN (3 845)
Change In deferred tax assets and liablliiss 4204 1711
Changa In current tax assets and llabilities 1284 )]

an {49e1)

8. Properly, plant and equipment
8.1. Changaa In property, plant and equipment

Vehiciés and othar
NKat canrying amount
Gross oamying amount 503 186 318 189 821
Accumulated depreciation and Impairment alicwances (484), ..(65803) {55 087)
20 153 718 __inns
e T et
Investment axpendituras - 37 043 37 043
Depreciation (2) {21072) 21074)
see - amn. . ...0¥;n
311272020
Net carrying amount —_—— s 145338 . lag3s7
Gross camying amount 508 203 564 204 088
Acoumuisted depreciation and impairment allowanices .. (488) (85.228) s
- ) 148 338 148 357
vimifeie T ' S
Net carrying amount
Gross carying amount 603 178 882 170483
Accumulated depreciation and impairment allowances (482) (61 541) (62 022)
. ) ) | a7 4 97 483
rsisaiideedas), not . i e
Investment expendliuras - o7 or1
Depresiation - — (15 798) {15 600
31122019
Net carrying amount 20 . 1mns L sans

8.2. Other information

.'mngm- value of of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment 11181 18811
h a e e e Fd AT

11 151 16619
The Company reviews economic useful lives of property, plant and equipment and Infroduces adjustments to depreclation
charge proapectively sccording to its accounting policy. 8hould the depreciation policy from the previcus vear be applied,
the depreciation expense for 2020 wouki remaln unchanged.

12




PETROTRANS, a.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of CZK)

9. Intanglbles sssets
9.1. Changes In Intanglible assets

I Spfoware  Aszspts under dovelopment Tatal

o1/01/2020
Net aarvying amount
Gross carrying amount 3490 100 3500
Accumulsted smoriisation and impakment alowsnces {2384) = {2 384)
‘ 11208 100 120
Incresse/{decrense), net ,
Invasiment axpendiures 320 380 €80
FM020
Net carrying smount 1103 480 1844
Gross canylng amount 3810 480 42N
Accumulated amortisation and Impaimment allowences (2627 - {2a27)
1183 480 1044
o1miet
Net oarrying amount
Grose canying amount 2321 74 3038
Acoumulsisd amortisation and impairment allowances (2 180) - (2 180)
1M T4 ]
increassi{decreass), net
Invesiment expendiures 656 . 566
Amosttration {184) - {184)
Recissaifications 814 ®14) .
MMt
Nat oarrying amount 1128 100 1228
8.2 Other Information
= iR s = in BN _ | 0]
The gross book vaiue of all fully deprecisted intangibie assets ot in use 280 200
280 0

The Compeny reviews economic useful lives of intangible assets and Infroduces acjustments to amortizaion charge
prospeciively according to its accounting policy. Should the amortization retss from the previous year be applied, the
amortization expenss for 2020 would ba without change.

10. Trade and other recelvables

[ i R = s

Trads receivables 38 302
Other 223
Financlel asssls 38 439
Gther taxstion, duty, ecciel ssourtty receivables 1625
Prepayments and deffared costs 1190
Non-finsncial sssets 4 564
Recaivables, nst 43100
Expecied credit koss 3105 3166
Recalvebles, gross 43099 aau

Trads recelvables result primarily from aales of services. The menagsment considers that the carrving amount of trade
recelvables approximates their falr value. The average credit period on sales of services is 30 daye.

The Company axposura to credit and currency risk related to trade and other recelvabies Is disciosed in note 16 and detalied
Information about recelvables from related partles Is presented In note 18.

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and In bank
1678




PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of CZK)

12. Equity

121. Share capitsl

The share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2020 amounted to C2K 16 000 thousand (as at 31 December 2018:
CZK 16 000 thousand). Share of 99.4 % is owned by ORLEN Unipetrol RPA s.r.o., remaining share is owned
by ORLEN Unipetrel a.s.

12.2. Retained earnings

On the basis of shrareholders' decigion the profit fot the year 2018 of CZK 16 409 thousand was transferred to retained
eamings of past years,

13. Provisions

Langarm Short-tarm Tatal
ANIZRGI0 3N2/2019 3H2000 IWILINE, 3142/2020 31/12

200 o 70 4 339 280

dubiiee honuars and
retirement benelits provision

_dubiies bonuses ghd.
epthrrmaind benehits providen

13.2. Provisions for Jublies bonuses and retirement benefits

The Company realizes a program of paying out retirement benefits in line with the remuneration policies in force. The
retirement beneflis are pald as one-time paymente at retirement. The jubliee bonuess are pald to employees after a specified
number of years at a significant anniversary. The base for the calculation of provision for an employes is expected benefit,
which the Company is obliged to pay In accordance with an internal regulation.

The present value of these obligations is estimated at the end of each reporting year and ad|usted If there are any material
Indications Impacting the valve of the obligations. The accrued Hablliies squal discounted future payments considering
emplcyees rotation.

Employment benefit provisions were created using discount rate 1.10% p.a. in 2020 (2019: 1.40%). Should the prior year's
assumptions be used, the provislon for the jubilee bonusses and refirement benefite would be lower by CZK 22 thousand.

14




PETROTRANS, a.r.0.

SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {in thousands of CZK)
13.2.1. Change In smpioyes benefits obligations
| w::::'"m“ Retiramant benefits Tatal
SUFZROI, 3122009 IINLENZ0 JRAei0 ) 122020 Jiﬂgmﬂ'
At the beginning of the year 180 121 19 103 278 224
Current ssrvios cost 42 40 3 20 ™ (]
inferest sxpanss 2 2 2 2 4 4
Actuariel gains and lceses net 28 10 ()] [t:)] 7
demographic sssumpiions 13 4 4 (1] 17 1]
financial essumptions 2 3 4 ] [ ] "]
othar ssues 19 3 f14) - ") 3
Paymanis under program {40 (13) 2 {11 {40) 24)
182 180 148 120 30 20

The camrying amount of empioyes benefits liabliities Is identical to their present value as at 31 December 2020 and as at
31 December 2019.

13.22. Divison of amployee benefits [labifititas by employsss

Active eniployess Fengianar Total

Jtdzdare  aiMzotol alhaaoih adli2nons ddfizizge0  Jaranabin
240 280

Casoh Republic

13.23. Geographical division of smployes benefits liabllities
Froyistin for julries

bonunes
AR08 BEEGID  SINV00 A1A0NE HHER0ED  BHERNG
Czach Republio 162 180 148 120 340 260
’ 40 200

Rutirement banefits Tolsl

13.2.4. Ssnaitivity analysis to changes in actuarial assumptions

The Company analysed the impact of the financlal and demographic assumptions and calculated that the changes or ratios:
remuneration ratio by +/- 0.5 p.p., the discount rate by +/- 0.5 p.p. and the rate of turmover by +/- 0.5 p.p. are no higher than
CZK 5 thousand. Tharefore, the Company does not present any detalled information.

The Company carried out the amployee benefit payments from curment resources. As at 31 Dacember 2020 thers were no
funded plans and the Company pald no coniributions to fund lablities.

13.2.5. Employes bensfits maturity and payments of liabllities analysis
13.2.54. Maturity of employee benefits analysis

Treyezion for jubfiee : : ;
Bonusss Rtk it bajufits Tutal

ayjipaesa’ INi22019 M0y JiNz0i0 rgene. Al

Lesa than one year L] L 14 13 70 48

Beiwesn one and thres years ™ &4 18 1 a7 TS

Between thes and five yesrs 2 %8 13 13 435 40

Later than five ysare 33 2r 106 83 138 110

40 480

Weighted averags duration of Habliity -] ] 9 8

Prior year's sssumption to be used, the provision @2) @
will be lower (-Vhigher (+)

13.2.32.  Ageing of employse benefits payments analysie

Provision for jubllve : e
_bonusss mwwmﬂﬁ?..
20| BNRRNS S0 Sp05E

E]I]E]Hfiipeh'-::l!
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SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {in thousands of CZK)

13.2.8. Total employes bensfils expenses recognized In the statement of profit or ioss and other comprehansive
income

In profit and loss

Current service oost {75) (69)
Intersat axpenss (4) %)
Actuarial geins and (osses nat (28) {10)
darnographlc assumptions (13} )
financial eesumptions {2 @
oihor lssusn {13} 3
Payments under program 40 24

In components of other comprehonsive Income
Gains and losses ariging from changes [ 3
demographic assumptions 7] [
finenoial @ssumptions {4) (-]
cther issuoy - 14 0
[ 3
®1) (o0

Provison for employea benefits recognized in profit or joss were accounted as follows:

Sirénnio)
en, . 9
(e (59)

Cost of sales

T o am e o i s o -

Based on ourrent legleiation, the Company s cbliged to pay contributions io the national pension insurance. Thess expenses
are recognized as soclal security and healthcare Insurance costs. The Company has no other obligations In this respect.
Addltional information about the jubiles and retirement benefits are In note 21.3.23.

14. Trade and other llabliitiss

N0

Tride Rabilties S 12188 19884
Lease lisbiltias 5804 4 809
Other 128 119
Fll'lll!dﬂ llhllll:hl 18218 24 !ilz
Payroll Rabilitlas 6028 5872
Other taxation, duties, soclal security and ather banefiis 4719 5602
Accrusls 13 459 18 082
wages socrug! 8540 11172

other 8019 7810

ch-m!ndll Illblllllgl iy 24 208 30488
42414_ 35268

The management considers that the carrying amount of trade and cther liabilities approximates thelr fair vaiue.

18. Other financial liabilities

poo ' _ E = IR
—— e a7 =

45734 456117

Based on & loan agresment with the company ORLEN Unlpetrol a.s., the Company may ulilire current unsecured loans in
the form of overdrafts (caeh poul) or loans. Interest is paid on the first working day after the close of the reporting period.
The interest rates ara basad on appropriate Inter-bank rates and the falr value of the loans approximated ite camying amount.

18
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

18. Financial Instruments

16.1. Financial Instruments by category and class

Financial assets
I ROZ0 Financial ingtruments by categary
Finencial Instiuments by cliss Lotns anll recelvables
Trade and other ecelvables 10. 38282 38202
Cash and oash equivalents . L say7
41088 41 808
1422018 Financiyl instrimants by category
Financial instrisments by cliss Loans niid recsivpties
Trade and ather receivables
Cash and cash aquivalents 1. 1078 1678
40 201 4021

2S00 Financigl instrumeants by catirgary

Financial fiabilities Lisbiitios sxcluded linm

FroancAst i neris Ry stess measured At amprtided coat the scape ol IFRS 9
Lanee Babiise - 45 984 46984
Trade Gabliies 14, 12 188 - 12188
Cash pool 15 45738 - 45738
Other 4. 128 - 126
48 0b0 45964 104 014

S0 Firancialinitruments by eatogory

g L, r Fithancisl fiabiitios Lipkilifes exchuded feam

Flnanclalinstrumdmnts by cliss Bos rad at s ed okt e scope of IFRS 9
Loase Enbiltiss - 3340 33 485
Trede labiities 14, 10654 - 16 884
Cash pool 18 48117 - 48 17
Cther 14 119 - 19
o8 120 3B 408 % 5

Fiancial instzunienis by catagory

Financial linbililez  Liotilities sicleded

'::':.l:,':ﬁ"’: moasured ot from the scope of
: 1 b tiopagsd ez IFRS0

Financial Instrumbnits by caligory

Financialllabilities  Lisbilities exciuded
.Ef;“i&'l: [ st * Aromthe scape of
Miste LR w : HHS b




PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of CZK)

16.3. Fair value measurement

Trade and other receivables 10. 38 262 38262
Cash and cash equivaisnts LA L. LA 1. .4 . a437
#1699 41600 . 4169
Financial liabiiities h
Trade liabiifies 1, 12 188 12 188 - 12188
Lease iabilltiea 46064 45984 : 45 084
Cash poo! 16, 46738 45738 : 4573
Other 14 —28 128 - 128
104014 104 014 : 104 014

311202019 Fairwatum hierarchy
Canying amousit s Leve Leval 2

Financlal assets
Trade and other receivables 10. a8 525 88525 - 38525
Cash and cash eguivalents __ 1. 1678 .. 1678 - 1678
40 201 40201 - 40 201
Financial Habiiities ) R
Trade labfiliies 14, 10 884 19 884 . 19 884
Lease lnabilittes 83 466 33 468 . 33486
Cash pool 16. 48 117 486 117 - 48 117
Other _ ... oo A8 18 . 8
09 506 ) . 99 588

s e mtrertre s b et e

16.4. Methods appiled In determining falr values of financlal instruments (falr value hierarchy)

Fair value of shares quoted on active markets ls determinad based on market quotations {so called Level 1). in other cases,
fair value is determined based on other Input data, apart from markest quotations, which are directly or indirectly possible to
observe (so called Lavel 2) and data to valuation, which are not basad on observable markst data (Lave! 3).

Financlal assats and liablities carried at fair valus by the Company belong to Leve! 2 as defined by IFRS.

In the year ended 31 Pecembar 2020 and the comparative period there were no transfere betwsen Levels 1, 2 and 3
In the Company.

16.5. Risk Identification

The Company's activities are exposed to many different types of risk. Risk management is mainly focused on the
unpradictability of financial markets and aims to minimize any polential negstive impacts on the Company’s financial results.

18.5.1. Currency risk

The cumency risk arises most significanily from the exposure of trade iiabilites and receivables denominated in foreign
currencles. Foreign exchange risk regarding trade liablilities and receivahles is mostly covered by natural hedging of trade
liabliites and recelvables denominated in the sama currencies.

Currency structure of financial Instruments denominated In main foreign currencies as at 31 December 2020

|Finangial nstumpnts by class T i SRR

Financial aesets ' o :

Trade and oiher recelvables 04 2488

Cash and cash equivelante e 2er2
203 5328

Finenciai llabliitdes e

Trade habities 3 B

Currency structure of financial instruments denominated in main foreign ourrencies s st 31 Dacember 2019
Financial sssets

Trade and other recelvables 2539
Cash and ossh equivalents 1434
3073

Financiai liabiiities
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Semitivity snalysls for currency changes risk

The influence of potential changes In camying amounts of financial Instruments as et 31 Dscember 2020 and
as at 31 Dacamber 2018 arising from hypathetical changes in exchanga rates of relevant currencies In relation to functional
currancy on profit before tax:

31132020

Infimance on profit botora e

Increhie ol pichange £ate TolstinNuehce  Decrease of mechange rabe

EUR/CIK 15% {767

influgnce onprofit befors e

Intekse ol phohangs role Totdl influance Decrensk'of axckhangs rate Totdl Influence

10.52. Inferest rate risk
Interest rate structure of financial Instruments

PRIBDR Capnyimg amotm!

3120 aglianare JRI020 Mi12/2819
Financial assate

Financisl Sshifities

Gash pool 45735 48 197 45738 A48 117

43733 48117 45738 40117

Sensltivity analysis for Interest rete risk
The Influence of financial Instruments on profit before tax due to changes In significant interest rates:

Assumed variafion
8 e U I ¥ T e R

PRIBOR 08 pp 0.8 pp (228) 81)
(29) e31)

The above Interest mtss variations were calculated based on obsarvations of intervet retes fluctuations in the cument and
prior year as wall as on the basis of available forecasts.

The sensitivity analysis was performed on the basis of instruments held as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2018.
The Influenca of Interest rates changes was presented on annual basis.

18.6.3. Liquidity and cradit risk

Liquidity risk

The foliowing tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial Iablikties. The tables have bean
drawn up based on the undiscountsd cash flows of financial llablliies using the eartiest date on which the Company can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

Maturity analiyais of financlel llabilities

Infmcont rato

31N 20E0
From1tad  From3ios Carrying
yearp yearn amount
Cash pool - undiscounted valus 45758 - - - 45 738 45738
Trade labiiies 4. 121898 - - - 12188 12188
Leass Esblities i7. 5004 11890 6383 33450 51626 45 085
Other 14 120 - - - 126 128
83884 11009 6383 340 113078 104 014

i 2e1a
Femitmd Fromdied Abule Tokil Camying
yoors yoars yoars amaoint
48 117 - - - 48 117 48 117

Upio 1 ynor

10884 - . 19884 19884
4800 8199 5235 28168 ar4n 83400

19 . . : 10 119
709 2100 6239 168 113881 99 506

19 {\
EIM Unipetrol
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SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {in thousands of CZK)

Credit risk

The Company’s credit rigk is primariy atirlbulable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the statement of
financial positton ara net of impairment losses, estimated by the Company's management based on prior experience and
tivelr assassment of the credit status of its customars,

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resufting in financlat loss to the
Company. The Company has adopled a policy of dealing only with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficlent
collataral, whera appropriate, as a mean of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. This information ie supplied by
indepandent rating agencies where available and, if not avaflable, the Company uses other publicly avallable financlal
Information and lts own trading records io rate iks major customers.

The Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monktored and the aggregated valus
of transactions concluded |s spread amengst approved counterparties. Cradit exposure is controlled by counterparty Imits
that are reviewed and approved by the Management Board. Before accepting any new customer, the Company uses own
or extemnal credit scoring system to assess the potenclal customer's credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Trade recelvablea of the customers outside the Group did not exceed 6% of the total trade receivables (except for one
creditworthy customer) as at 31 December 2020.

Basad on the analysis receivablas, the counterparties were divided into two groups:
- Group 1 - counterparty with good or very good history of cooperation in the current year,
- Group Il - other counterparties.

The divislon of not past due trade and other recelvables

Growe | . 18 ame 38525
8700 38525

31/12{2018
3195

31985

Ageing analysls of trade receivables and expected credit loss as et 31 Det_:nmber 2020

1 Welphind average

Tradoeavablety: Trada recatvabios,

rale of expoct J

BI'LISE 1o l:rl“ﬂr:(t:g real

cument 38 249 - 36 240
from 1 io 30 days 473 - - 473
from 31 o 60 days 815 - - 815
from 61 to 80 days - . na -
taote than 90 daye past due 3573 3185 .9 378
40 910 3180 s

Weiphtad 'n\rgrlge
rote of opetted

T3 Expacted credit
Teatie recelvabies, L SYin Horzon of

Trade receivablasy,

grote

Wwhnle 1] eraeht loas

* eurrant 58 302 -
from 4 to 30 days . -
from 31 fo 60 days - - n‘a -
from 61 10 80 days . - nia -
. more than 90 day= past dua 318 3185 100 e T

41 487 3193 38 302

The Company sets impalrment aliowances based on analysis of customers’ craditworthiness and ageing of receivables.
In determing tha recoverabliity of a trade recelvable, the Company conslders any change in the credit quality of the debtor
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The management conslders that there Is no further cradit
risk ellowance required in excess of the allowance for Impalrment charges.

Increases and roversals of Impaimment allowances In respect of the principal amount of trade and other receivables are
included in other operating expense or incoma, and default Interest Is Included In financlal expense or incoms.

The camying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The meximum credit risk In respsct of sach class of inancial asssts is equal to the bock value.

O Unipetrol
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17. Lease

17.1. The Company as a lsssse
Change in right of use ssaels

010t/2020

Nat canrying amount

Gross caying amount 29804 8371 30 230

Acounulated depreciation and impairment allowanoss {1792) (4 402) (eisd)
20072 4000 2952

New lesse agresments, increase in laasing remunarsiion 0 5856 eTTe 19 344

Degreciation (2287 (5233) (7 820)

M My2020

Nat oarrying amount 35300 9425 a4TT8

Gross oarying amount 39420 18 150 saome

Acoumulaiad deprecistion and impaiment sllowances {4 070) (0 725) {13 004)
330 428 44776

Mo

Net oarvying smount st 1/01/2019 — impact of IFRS 18 adoption

Grose cezrying ampunt s2251 8278 40520
12 2% 8278 40 329

incressal{tecrense), net

New leses agreemants, increess In leasing remunermtion 2116 1008 3208

Dapreciation (t 792) (4 492) (6 264)

Other (4 502) . (4 802)

M0

Net carrying smount 28072 4880 12082

Maturity analysis for undiscounted lease iiabliities

wp fo 1 year 5 804 4800
from 110 2 yeurs 7138 5912
from 2t0 3 years 4783 3287
from 310 4 years 3181 2757
from 410 § ysars 3181 2478
above 5 yesrs 33450 28168
sroa 47 411
Discount (11.061) (13845)
450853

Amounis from lease contracts recognised in the statement of profit or ioss and other comprshensive Income

Coats dus to: R84 (3.031)

inierest on lexse Finanos costs (1 688} (12438)
shork-ienm lease Cost by nature; Exiamal Servioss (85) (1232)
S S oty xS wn an

17.2. The Company ss a lessor

As at 31 December 2020 and as at 31 Decamber 2019 the Gompany did not possess any finance lease agreements as
a lssaor.

18. investment expendiiures incurred and future commitments resulting from signed investment contracts

WCompanymImdlnmeyurzozolnwmnmtchwmucofcm SETnseand (CZK 65 835 thousand In 2019).
The major Investment realized in 2020 was purchase of truck tanks ang et

CZK 33 716 thousand).
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18. Related partles transactions

19.1. Material transactions concluded by the Company with related parties
In 2020 and 2019 there were no iransactions concluded by the Company with related parties cn other than market terms.

19.2. Transactions with key management personnel

In 2020 and 2019 the Company did not grant to key management personnel and thelr relstives any advances, loans,
guarantees and commitments or other agreesments obliging them to render services to the Company and related parties.
There were no significant transacticns concluded with members of statutory bodies or with their family members or other
related parties In 2020 and 2019.

18.3. Transaction with related parties concluded by key management personnel of the Company

in 2020 and 2019 the members of the key exacutive personnel, basad on the submitted statements, did not conclude any
transactions with their related parties.

19.4. Transactions and balances of setiements of the Company with related parties

Ultimats controlling party

Ultimate controlling party is POLSKI KONCERN NAFTOWY ORLEN S.A., which owned a majority (100%, resp. 100%)
of shares in parent companies ORLEN Unipsirol RPA s.r.0. and ORLEN Unipetrof a.s. during 2020 and 2018.

| Entities wndargontrel or  Entities under contral

PKN Qrlen ORLEN.RL:,QF:E?’I slgnificant Inflience of or significant influsnce

b= g OALEN Unipefrol a.s, of PEH Crian

Purchases - 26 241 BS8 -
. Finance costs _ - = Bi3 -

Entitlls undes tonirol or | Enllties under cortral
A1712{I020 HPA & 7.0 signjticant influence of  orsignificantinfluence

iy CHLEN ipetral a.s. O BEN Diien
Trade and other recelvables - 22 a1 2 456 -
Trade and other Uabliities, Inchuding loans e 11484 . ATas -

DRLEN Unipétiol

Entliss undas control or  Entities under contrel
aignificant influence of or significantinfluence
DHLEN Unipetrol a.s, of PKN Orfen

DHELEN Unipotiol
RPA & TO.

[Finance costs. z =l e 1305 lt

] Entities undercontiolor  Entities under contipl
T2 PHN Oilen et Ll;up!.-m:.anl ihMshce of & signdficahlinHuehse
DORLEN Unipatrol a.s. al KN Oren

QRLEN Unipetrol

Trade and ofher receivables : 28 817 2530 -
Trade and other labilijes, Inciudingloans . _ . . "o . J3ED9 e W ATEA2 L L

20. Remuneration pald and dus or potentiaily due to the key exacutive personnel and statutory representatives

The remuneration of the kay execulive personne! and statutory representatives includes short-term employee bensfits pald,
due and potentially due during the vear.

20.1. Koy managsmant personnel and statutory representatives compansation

Shprderm  Tepmination

Eanbfi kanelite

Remunsration of cument period (costs)
Pald for previous year
ity due 10 be paid In the following year

Further detalled Information regarding remuneration of key management pers-ip
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202. Bonus system for key axecutive personnel of the Company

In 2020 the key executive personnel was parficipating In the annual MBO bonus system (management by objectives). The
persons subject to the above-mentioned system are remunerated for the accomplishmant of spacific goals sat at the
beginning of the bonus period. The bonus eystems are structured In such way, to promote to achieve the best posaible
rasulis for the Company. The goals so-sald are qualliative or quaniitative (measurable) and are evaluatad following the end
of the year for which they were set, based on the ruies edopted In the appiicable Bonus System Regulations.

21, Accounting principles
21.1. impact of IFRS amendments and interpretations on separate financial statements of the Company

21.1.4. Binding amendments to IFR8s and Interpratations
Sty rpratations £

Amendmants o IPRE T Financial inetrumants, (A8 %0 Financial Instrumenis: Recognition and Massurement and IFRS 7
Financis Instruments: Disciosures ~ interest Rete Benchmark Reform.
Amondmants to Refersnces t the Conceptus! Framework In IFRS Standerde 0o Impaot

21.1.2. IFRS8s, amendments and Interpretations to IFR8s endoreed by the European Union, not yat effective

w508 ypwined IFAS Standards adonted by the £15 in lewiie b not et ffpcilie

Amendments to IFRS 18 Lesses - Covid-10-Related Rent Concessions  molmpectepesd
Amendments to IFRS 4 insumnos Cortracts — Exenalon of the Temporary Exempion from Appiying IFRS B 1o bripact Expectad
Amendmanis to IFRS 9 Financle! Instruments, IAS 38 Finanois! instrurments: Recognition and Messurement, IFRS 7 Finencial no impact expecied

m:nmm4m“mﬂ_@;1um-mmmm—m:

21.1.3. New and revised IFRS standards, emandments and Interpretations adopted by international Accounting
Standards Board, walting for approval of the Europsan Unlon

IFRE 17 lnourance Conbwo_
Amentdmant to [FRS 3 Business combinafions . — . e
Amendmants to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Stxtemants and IAS 28 invesiments in Associaies and Joint Vantures: Sale or o mpsct expeciad
Conbifoution of Asasts between an invesior snd s Assoclsis or Joint Venture and further amendments

Amendments to 1AS 1 Cisstfication of Lisbiilties &3 Gurrent or Non-Current no impact axpaciad
Amendmants to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment ho Impact expeoied
Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingant Liabilities and Contingent Asssis no impact axpacted
Amendments to various standards due to “Improvemants to IFRSs (aycia 2018-2020)° ha impact expected

21.2. Functional currency and presentation currency of financlal statements

These seperate financlal stalements are presented in Czach crowns (CZK), which Is the Company's preseniation and
functional currency. All financial Information pressntsd in CZK has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

21.3.  Applied accounting policies

21.3.1. Transactions In forelgn currency

A foreign currency traneaction is recorded, on initial recognition In the functional currency, by applying fo the foreign currency
amount the spot axchange rate between the funotional curmency and the foreign currency at the dats of the transaction. The
transaction day I the day on which the transaction for the first time qualifies for recognition under IFRS. In perticular, when
the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownershlp of asasts (IAS 18) or in the case of financial instruments, the day
on which the Company commits o purchase or sell an asset.

At the end of the reparting period:

- forelgn currency monetary flems including units of cumency held by the Company as well as recelvables and
NabiBties due In defined or definable units of currency are transiated uaing the closing raie, |.e. spot rate as at the
end of the reporting period,

- non-monetary lems that are measured in terms of historical cost In & forsign cumency are translated ueing the
sxchange rate at the date of the frensaction; and N P}

-  non-monetary kems that are measured at falr valus In a foreigfeliiency and-irdnslated using the exchange ratss
at the date when the fair value was determined. ‘

gting manelary tems at rates
ansé in the period In which

Exchange differences arising on the setiiement and valuation of atary
different from those at which they were transiated on initisl recognitidn as

.."{‘\
EITE Unipetrol
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they arise, except for monetary ltems which hedge the cumency risk, are accounted in accordance wih cash flow hedge
accounting principles.

Forelgn exchange differencas are includad In the financlal result (or In certain ciroumstances In other comprehensive income)
on a net basis, unless they relate to the Individually significant transactions.

21.3.2. Revenues

The Company applies the principles of IFRS 15 In a five-step modei in relation to the porifollo of contracts (or performance
obligations) with similar characteristics, if the entity reascnably expects that the impact of the following principles on the
financial statements will not significantly differ from the application of the following principles to Individual contracts (or
performance obligations).

Requirements lo idenilfy e contract with a cusiomer

A contract with & customer mests its definition when all of the following criteria are met: the parties of the contract have
approved the contract and are committed to perform their obligations; the Company can identify each parly's rights regarding
goods or services to ba transferred; the Company can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;
the contract has commerclal substance and k is probable that the Company will collect the consideration to which it will be
enfitied in exchange for the goods or services that will be transferred o the customer.

Identification of performance cbligationa

At contract Incaption the Company assesses the goods or servicas promised In the contract with a customer and identifles
as a performance obligatien sach promise to transfer to the customer: goods or services (or a bundle of goods or services)
that can be separated or groups of separate goods or services which are basically the same and for which the transfer to
the customer is of the same nature.

Determination of the iransaction price

‘The Company conskiers the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price.

The transaction price is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to ba entitted In exchange for transferring

promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts coliected on behalf of third parties (for exampls, some sales

taxws, fual charges, excise taxes). The consideration promised In the contract with a customner may Include fixed amounts,

varlable amounts or both.

To estimate variable consideration, the Company decided to apply the most probable value method for contracts with one

;fhalua threshold and ths expected value method for contracts with more value thresholds from which a rebate Is granted to

® customer.

Allocating the trensaction price to Individual performance obligations

The Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation {or distinct good or service) at an amount that

reflects the emount of consideration to which the Company expecis to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised

goods or services to the customer.

Recognition of revenue when performance obfigations are satisfied

The Company racognises revenue when (or as) the Company salisfies performanca obligations by tranaferring a promised

good or service {l.e. an asset) to a customer (the customer cbtaine control of that asset). Revenues are recognised as

amounts equal to the transaction price thet has been allocated to a given parformance cbligatian.

The Gompany transfers centrol of good or sarvice over time and, therefore, satisflas a performance obligation and recogniees

revenues over time, If one of the following criteria Is met:

- the customer simultaneously recsives and consumes the benefits from performance as the Company parforms,

= fhe asest Is created or enhanced as a result of the parformance, and the customer controis the assst as It Is created or
enhanced,

- ase resultof the performance of tha service, an altemative component for the Company is not created, and the Company
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

21.3.3. Costs

Costs {relating to operating activily) inciude costs that relate to core activities, i.e. ectivities for which the Company was

founded, costs are recurring and are not of incidenial character.

Costs ara recognized In the statement of profit or loss whan a decreass In future sconomic benefits related to a decrease In

an asset or an Increase of a labliity has arisen that can be measured rellably.

The Company recognizes cosis in accordance with the principle of proportionality of revenues and costs. In line with

matching concept, cost that relate to the eamned revenues are:

- costs that may be directly atiributed to the revenuss of the reporiing period,

- costs that are not directly atiributable to the revanues, for which thare is avidance that they led 1o the economic benefits
racelved in the reporting period.

Cost of salss comprises costs of finished goods, services, merchandise and raw materials sold and adjustments related to

Inventoriee written down to nst realizable value.

Addltional costs of contract incepiion and cosis of performance of the contract

The Company recognizes costs in accordance with matching concept. In line wiff yro cept, cost that relate to the

esamed revenues are: additional costs of coniract inception are recogn; -A' A5 they are Incurred, If the

depraciation period of the asset that would otherwise were recognized by ¢ & gne-feRr or less.

Distribution expenses Include trading expenses, advertieing and promotio) expefiis aghs

General and adminlsirative expenses Include expenses relating to mandoepacit b i Istration of the Company as a

whole. ]
S 7
Lay 12&7 17720 Unipetrol
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21.34. Other operating income and expsnses

Other operating revenuss and expensss Indirectly refer to operating aclivity and ere incidental.

Other operating Income Includes, In particular income from liquidation and sale of nonfinancial non-curent asests, surpius
assals, retumn of court fees, penalties eamed, excess of grants recelved to revenues over the value of costs, asseis raceived
freg of charge, reversa! of recelvable Impairment allowances, non-gument assete and intangibla assets, right of use assats
and some provisions, compensations eamed and revaluation gains, valuation and gain on the sale of investment property,
settiement and valuation of derivative financial Instruments (in scope of exposure to risk related fo operating activity).
Other operating expenses include In particular loss on liquidation and sale of non-financlal non-cument asests, assets deficl,
court fees, contractual penaities and fines, penaities for non-complance with environmental protaction regulations, cash and
tanglble assets transferred fres of charge, Impaimment allowances {except those that are recognized as financial costs and
cost of sales), compensation pald, write-off of consiruction in progress which have not produced the desired aconomic effect,
coet of recovery of recsivables and revaluation lossas, valuation and loss on sale of Invesiment proparty, ssttiement and
valuation of dertvative financial nstruments {in scope of exposure to risk related o operating activity).

21.3.8. Finance Income and costs

Finance Income and coets are related to financial operations, including obtaining financing sources and s servicing.
Finance income Includes, in particutar, Income from tha eale of shares and other securities, dividends recelved, Interest
samad on cash in bank accounts, term daposits and loans graniad, Increase in the value of financial assets and net foreign
axchange gains, setlement and valuation of derivative financlal Instruments (in terms of exposure © rlek related to financial
activity). Dividend Income from Investments I recognized when the shareholders’ rights to recelve payment have been
establishad,

Finance costs Include, In particular, loss on sale of shares and securities and costs assoclated with such sale, impaiment
losees relating to financial assets such as shares, securities and interest, net foreign exchangs loeses, interest on own bonds
and cther securities lasued, interest on finance lease, commissions on bank loans, borrowings and guarantess, seitiement
and valuation of derivative financial Instruments (in terms of exposure to risk related to financlal activity).

21.3.8. Loases due to Impairment of financial Instruments

The losses due to iImpalrment of financial instrumente Include in particulsr:
- losesa due to impeirmaent of receivables,

- losses dua to Impairment of intareet on receivables,

- reversal of loases due to Impairment of recalvebles,

- reversal of iosses due to iImpaiment of Intereat on recelvables,

- loases due to Impalrment of loans granted,

« reverss] of lossas due to impalrment of loans granted,

= losses due to Impairment of other financial Inetruments,

= reversal of losses due to impaiment of other financlal instruments

21.3.7. Tax sxpenss

Income tax expenses include curmant tax and deferred tax.

Current tax axpense Is detsrmined In accordance with the relevant tax law based on the texable profit for a given peried and
Is recognizad as & Habllity, in the amount which has not been paki or as an assat, if the amount of the current and prior
perioda Income tax pald exceads the amount due.

Defarrad tax assets and liabilities are accounted for as non-current, are not discounted and are offset In the statement of
financlal posttion, If there Is a legally enforceabla right to offsst the recognized amounts.

The transactions settied directly In equity are recognized in equity.
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21.3.8. Property, plan and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are assets that are heki for use In the production or supply of goods or services, for rental 1o
others, or for administrative purposas, and are axpected to be used during more than ohe period (one year or the aperating
cycle, if longer than one year).

Property, plant and equipment Include both fixad assets (assets that are in the condition necessary for them {o be capable
of operating in the manner intended by managemant) as well as construction in progress (assets that are In the course of
construction or development necessary for them to be capable of operating In the manner intended by managemant).
Property, plant and equipment are initlally stated at cost, including grants related to assets {IAS 20). The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including any costs directly atiributable to bringing the assst
into use.

The cost of an ltem of proparty, plant and equipment also Includes estimated costs of dismantling and removing the ltem
and restoring the sitefland on which It is located, the obligation for which Is connected with acquisition or construction of an
ltem of property, plant and squipment and capitalized borrowing costs,

Property, plant and equipmsent are stated In the statement of financial pesition prepared at the end of the reporting period at
the camying amount, Including grants related to assets. The camying amount ls the amount at which an asset Is Initially
recognized (cost) aftar deducting any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impalrmant losses.

Borrowlng cost directfy atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of en item of property, plant and equipment
are part of the initiai cost.

Land, precious metal and pieces of art are not depreciated. Thelr value Is decreased by impalment allowances. Their value
is decreased by the eventual Impairment allowances.

Depraciation of an Itam of property, plant and equipment begine when it is avallable for use that [s from the month it I3 In the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of cperating In the manner intended by the managemant, over tha
period reflecting thelr estimated ussful (ife, considering the residual value. Componsnts of property, plant and equipment
which ane material for the whole item are depreciated separately in accordance with their useful lives.

The following standard ussful lives are used for property, plant and equipment:

Bulldings and constructions 10-40 years
Machinery and squipment 4-35 years
Vehicies and other 2-20 yoars

The stralght-line method of depreciation is used. Resldual values, estimated ueeful lives and depreciation methods are
reassessed annually. The adjustments to depreciation expense are accounted for In subsequent period (prospectively).
The costs of significant repairs and regular maintenance programs are recognized as property, plant and equipment and
depreciated In accordance with thelr useful lives. The costs of cument maintenance of property, plant and equipment are
racognized as an expense when they are incurred,

Property, plant and equipment are tested for impairment, when there are indicators or events that may imply that the carrying
amount of those assets may not be recoverable.

21.3.9. Investment property

Investment proparties are properties which are held elther to eam rental income or for capital appreciation or for both.

Investment property shall be recognized as an asset when, and only when:

- itls probable that the future economic benefits that are assoclated with the investment property will flow to the Company,
and

-  the cost of the Investment property can be measurad rellably.

An investment property shali be measured initially at its cost. Transaction costs shall be included in the inlfial measuremant.

The cost of & purchased Investment property comprises its purchase price and any directly atirlbutable expenditure. Directly

altributable expenditure includes, for example, professional fees for legal eervices, property transfer taxes and other

transaction costs. For Internally constructed Investment property the cost Is set at the date of construction completion whaen

the asset Is brought into use, In accordance with rules set for property, plant and squipment.

After Initial recognition investment property shall be measured at falr value applying comparative and Income methods

depending on the nature of the investments.. Galns and losses resulting from changes In fair value of Investment property are

presented in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive Incoms In the period which they arles. The Company

determines fair value without any deduction for transaction costs it may Incur on sale or other disposal.

If the Company determines that the fair value of an invastment property is not reliably determinable on a continuing basls,

the Company shall measurs that investment property at cost In accordance with rules set for property, plant and equipment,

An Investment property Is derecognized on disposal or when the investment property ie parmanently withdrawn from uss

and no future aconomic benefits are expecied.

Unipetrol
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21.3.10. intangible asssts

intanglble assets include identiflable non-monetary assets without physical substance. An aseet |s Identiflable If it is elther
separable, l.e. I8 capable of being separated or divided from the Compeny and sold, transfermed, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either Individually or together with a refated contract, |dentiflable asest or liablity, regardiess of whether the
Company Intends to do eo, or arlses from contractual or other legal rights, regardiess of whether those rights are transferable
or sapamable from the Company or from other rights and obligations.
intangible assets are recognized If it ls probable that the expectad future economic benefits that are atiributable to the assets
will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured refiably.
An intengible aseet arleing from development {or from development phase of an Internal project) shall be recognized If, and
only if, the Company can demonsirate all of the following: the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
It will be avallable for use or sale, Its Intention to complste the intanglble assat and use or sall It, s abllity to use or ssll the
Intanglble asset, how the intangible assst will generate probable future sconomic benelts, among other things, the Company
can demonsirate the existence of a market for the oulput of the intangible ssaet iteslf or, If i is 10 be used intemally, the
usafuiness of the Intangible asest, the avaliablilty of adequate technical, financial and other resources fo complsts the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset, its abliity to measure reliably the expenditure alirixitable to the intanglble
asset during s development.
If the definition criteria of an intangible asset are not met, the cost Incurred to acquire or saif develop &n asset are recognized
In profit or loss when Incummed. An Intangible asset that Is acquired in a business combination, the cost of that Intangible asset
ls its fair value at the acquisition date.
An Intanglble ssaet shall be measured Inltially at cost, Including grants related to asssts (IAS 20). An intanglble aseet that Is
acquired in a business combination, Is recognized inkally at fair value,
After Initial recognition, an intanglble asset shail be presanted in the financial stalemsnts at its net camrying amount, including
granis related to assets.
Intangible assets are measured at acquisition or at consuction cost leas amortization and impaimment sllowances. intanglble
assets with & finite useful life are amortized when they become avaliable for use that is when they are in the location and
condition neceasary for them to be capable of operafing In the manner intended by the management over their estimated
useful Itfe. The depreciable amount of an asset with a finte useful life is determined after deducling its residual value.
Exsluding particular cases, the residual value of an intanglble asseat with a finlte uasful life shall be assumed to be zero.
Bomowing coets directly atiributeble to the scquisltion, construction or production of a quallying assst, e.g. Interest,
commiasions, are par of the Initial cost.
The following standard useful ives are used for Intangible assats:

Acquired licenses, patents, and similar Intangihie assets 2-15 yoars

Acquired computer software 2-10 years
The straight-ine method of amortization Is used. Appropriateness of the applied amortization perods and mtes s perlodically
reviewed, at |east at the end of the reporting vear, and potential adjustments to amoriization allowances are mads In the
subsequent periods. Intanglbie assets with an indefinite usetul life are ot amortized. Their vaiue is decreased by the eventual
Impaimment allowances. Additionally, the uselul llfe of an intanglble asset that is nat being amortized shall be reviewed each
period to determine whether evants and clroumstances continue to support an indefinite useful Iffe assessment for that asast,

21.3.11. Carbon dioxidie emiesion aliowances

By the viriue of The Kyoto Protocol, the countries, which decided to ratify the Protocol, obliged themseivas to raduce
emisslons of greenhouse gases, |.e. carbon dioxide (COz).

in the Europesn Union countries, the plants and companies, which reach productivity exceeding 20 MW and some other
industrial plants were obliged to participate in an emissions trading system. All mentioned entites are allowed to emit CO2
or they am partially granted free of charge In a specifiod quantity under the derogations provided in article 10a and 106 of
the EU Directive 2008/25/EC and are obliged to redesm themn In a number corresponding io the size of emission realized in
& given year.

COzemission rights are Iniially recognized as intangible asssts, which are not amortized (assuming the high reskius] value),
but tested for impairment.

Grantad amission allowances should be presonted separately as Intangibio assets in comespondence with deferred income
at falr value as at the date of registration (grant In scope of IAS 20). Purchasad allowances shoudd be presented ae intanglble
asests at purchase price,

For the estimated COz emiasion during the reporting period, a provision Is created In costs of operating activity (texes and
charges).

Grants ana recognized on a systematic basls to ensure propertionality with the relevant coets of creatad reserve.
Consumption of allowancas Is recognized using FIFQ method (First In, First Qut) within the individual types of rights {(EUA -
European Union Allowances, ERU — Emisslon Reductions Unite, CER — Certifled Emisslon Raduction).




PETROTRANS, s.r1.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of GZK)

21.3.12. Right of use assets

At the commencement date, the Company measures the right of use assats at cost.
The cost of the right of use asset comprises:
the amount of the initfal measurement of the lease llability;
all lease payments palid cn or before the date of commencemant, less any lease incentives recelved;
all Iniial costs directly Incurred by the leeses;
estimated costs to be Incurrad by the lessea In connection with the dismanting and removel of underlying assats, the
refurbishment of premises within which they are located, or the refurbishment of underlying assets to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the |ease, uniess these costs are incurred with the aim of creating stocks.
Other varieble payments, which do not depend on an index or & rate and do not have a set minimal level, should not be
taken Into account when calculating lease llabllity. Such payments are racognized in the profit and loss account in the period
of the occurence which renders them payable.
After the commencament date, the lessee shall measure the right of use asset applying the cost model:
- in appiving the cost model, the lessee shall measure the cost of the right of use asset, less any accumulatad amortization
and any accumulated Impalrment losses and combined losses on account of loss of value.
- comected in respect of any updates to the measurement of lease liability not resulting In the necessity for recognition of
2 separate asset.
Right of usa assets shall be depreciated linearly over the shortest of the foliowing two perlods: the pariod of leasa or the
period of ufiization of the underlying assets. However In cases whers the Company can be reasonably sure that it wiil regain
ownership of the asset prior to the and of the lease term, right of use shall be depreciated from the day of commencement
of the laass until the end of the useful life of the asset.
If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the leeses by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right of
use asset reflects the fact that the Company will exercise the call option, the lesese shall depreciate the right of use aeset
from the dete of commancament until the end of the useful life of the underlying assets, Otherwise the Company shall
depreciate the right of use asset from the date of commencement of the lease until the end of the useful [ife of the asset or
the lsasa term, whichever is sooner.
In dstermining the lease torm, the Company shall consider all important facts and Incidents behind the aconomic incentives
to make use of the option 1o extend the lease or not to exercise the option of its termination. The usaful ife of right of use
assets Is shall be determined in the same manner as for tanglble fixed assets.
The lesses shall apply IAS 36 Impalment of Assets to determine whether the right of use assst is iImpalired and to account
for any Impalrment loss identified.

21.3.13. impairment of property, plant and equipment ,Intangible assets and right of use assets

At the end of the reporting perlod the Company assesses whether there are Indicators that an assst or cash generating unit

(CGU) may be impalred or any indicators that the previously recognized impairment ehould be reversed. If any such indicator

axists, the Company shall estimate the recoverable amount of the asset (CGU).

The recoverable amount of other assels is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and valus in use.

Fair value lese costs to sell Is the price that would be reteived to sell an asset or pald to transfer a liabllity In an ordery

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, loss costs to sell.

Value in use Is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from an asset or CGL.

In asseseing value In uss, the eatimatad future cash flows are discounted to their presant value using a pre-tax discount rate

that reflacis current market assessmente of the time value of meney and the risks epecific to the asset.

Assets that do not generate independent cash flows are grouped at the lowest level at which cash flows, indspendent from

cash flows from other assels, are generated (cash generating units).

To the cash generating unit the following assets are allocated:

- goodwlll, if it may be assumed, thet the cash generating unit benefited from the synergles assoclated with a business
combination with another entity,

- corporate assets, If they may be allocated on & reasonable and coherent basis.

If there are external or internal indicators that the canying amount of an assst as at the end of the reporting pariod may not

be recoverable, impalrment tests are camred out. The tests are also carried out annually for intangibie assets with an indefinite

useful life and for goodwill.

When the cammying amount of an asset or a cash genereting unit exceeds iis recoverable emount, the carrying emount is

decreased to the recoverable amount by an adequate impalrment allowance charged againet coat in profit or logs.

The Impakment loss shall be allocated to the carrying amount of the assets of the unit In the following order:

- first, to reduce the carrying amount of any go—odwill allocated to the cash-generating unit; and

- then, to the other essats of the unit pro rata on the basis of the camying amount of each asset in the unit.

At the end of each reporting period an assessment shall ba made whether an Impairment loss recognized In prior periods

for an asset shall be partly or completely reversed. Indications of a potential decrease In an Impalmment loas mainly miror

the indications of a potential impairment loss in prior periods.

A reversal of an Impairment loss for an asset other than goodwi shall be re

asset is carrled at a revaiued amount In accordance with anather astandard

Eately In profit or loss, uniess the

Unipetrol
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21.3.14. Inventories

Inventories are sassts held for sala in the ordinary courae of businase, or In the process of production for such sale, or in the
form of maleriale or supples to be consumad In the production process or In the rendering of services.

Inventories comprise products, semi-finished products and work In progress, merchandise and materials.

Finished goods, ssmifinished products and work In progress are measured Initlally at production cost. Production coets
include costs of materials and costs of conversion for the production pariod. Costs of production also include a systematic
allocation of fixed and variable production overheads estimated for normal produoction level.

Finished goods, ssmHinished products and work In progress shal be measured at the end of the reporting period at the
lower of cost or net realizable velue, after deducting any impairment losses.

Disposais of finished goods, sami-finished products and work In progreas are determined based on the weightad

cost formula, the cost of each liem is determined from the weighted average of the cost of simllar hems produced during the
reporting period.

Merchandies and materials are measured Initially at acquisition cost.

As at the and of the raparting period merchandise and raw materiels sre measured et the lower of cost or net realizable
value, considering any Impaimnent allowancee. Disposals of merchandise and raw materials are determined bassd on the
weighted average acquisition cost or production cost formula. Impairment tests for specific iems of inventories are camled
out on a current basls during an annual reporiing period. Writs-down to net realizable value concems raw materials and
marchandse that are damaged or cbaolete.

Raw materials held for use In the production of Invaniories ane not written down below cost If the finishad products in which
they will be Incorporated are axpected to be sold at or above cost. However, when a decline In the price of metarials Indicates
that the cost of the finished producis exceeds net realizable value, the materiale are written down to net realizable value.
Recognition and reversal of Impairment allowances of Inveritorias ls recognized In cost of sales.

21.3.18. Trade and other recalvables

Recelvables, excluding trade recelvables, are recognized inltially at a falr value and subsequently, at amortized cost using
the effective Interest rate including expected credit loss. On inltial recognition, the Compeany meamuzes trate receivables that
do not have a significant Knancing component at their traneaction price.

The Company applies eimplified mathod of valuation of raceivables measured at amortized cost if & does not distort
Information concluded in the statement of financial position, In particular when the period until the repayment date I not
long.

Recalvables accounted at amortised cost, where the Company applies simpiifications, are accounted at the initial recognition
In the amount due, and lster, Including at the end of the reporting perlad, in the amount of the payment due less Impairment
allowances.

Recognition and revereal of impalrment lossss of recaivables are recognized In other operating activity In relation to the
principal amourt and In financial activities In relation to Interest for delayed payments.

As default the Company considers the event when the customer does not meet obligations after 80 days from maturity of
recaivables.

For the purpose of esfimating the expactad credit loss, the Company uses the provision matrix, which was sstimated basad
on historical levels of repayment and recoverias from receivebles from customers. The Company includes information on
the future in parameters usad in the expecied loss estimation madel, through the management adjustment of the basis
default probability rates,

The Company does not monitor changes In the credit ek during kfe of Instrument. From 1 January 2018 the Company
estimates the expacted cradit loas untll maturity of the Inetrument. The expected credit loes is calculated when the recelvables
are recognised in the statement of financial position and Is updaied on each subsaquant day ending the reporting period.

21.3.16, Cesh and cash equivalents

Cash comprizses cash on hand and In bank accounts as well as cash In fransit. Cash equivalents are shart-berm, highly Hquid
investments (of original maturity up to three months) thet are readlly convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject
to an (neignificant risk of change in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpcse of meeting short-term cash commitments
rather than for nvestment or other purposes.
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21.3.17. Non=current assets held for saie and discontinued oparations

Non-current aseets (or disposal groups comprieing assets and ilabiiiles) that are expected o be recovered primarily through

sale rather than continuing use are classified as held for eale,

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when the following criteria are simultaneously met:

- the sales were declared by the appropriate level of management;

- the assets are avaliable for an Immediate sale in thelr present condition;

- an active program to locate a buyer has been Inltialed;

- the sale transaction is highly probable and can be settied within 12 months following the sala decislon;

- the selling price is reasonable in refation to its current fair value;

- [tis unilkely that significant changes to the sales plan of these asssts will be introduced.

The classification of assets into this category Is mads In the reporting pariod when the classification criteria are met. If the

criteria for classification of a non-current assat as hald for sale are met efier the reporting perlod, an entity shall not classify

a non-cument asset as held for eale In those financial statements when issued.

Immediataly, before classification as held for sale, the asssts (or components of a disposal group) are remseasured in

accordance with the Company's accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets (exciuding financial assets) are

measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Any impaiment loss on a disposal group first

Is allocated to goodwill, and then to the remalning asssts and liabllities on a pro rata basis, excapt that no loss Is allocated

to inventories, financial assets, defermad tax assets or Investment property, which centinue to be measured In accordance

with the Company's accounting policles. While a non-current assat is classified as held for sale It shall not be depreciated

(or amortized). A gain Is recognized for any subsequent increase in fair value less costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess

of the cumulative impaiment loss that has been previously recognized.

A disconfinued operation is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

- represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations,

= |s part of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a saparate major line of business or geographical area of operations,
or

- s a subsldiary acquired exclusively with a view to rasala.

The Company shall re-present the disclosures presented with reference to the discontinued operation for prior perlods

presented in the consolidated financlal statements so that the disclosures relate to all operetions that have been discontinued

by the end of the reporting period for the latest period presented.

If the Company ceases o clasalfy discontinued cperations, the results of operations previousiy presented in discontinued

operations shall ba reclassified and Included In the results from continuing operations for all periods presented. The amounts

for prior periods shall be described as having baen re-presented.

21.3.18. Equity

Equity is recorded In the accounting records by type, in accordance with statutory regulationa and the Company's articles of

association. Equlty includes:

Share capital

The share capital is paid by shareholders and le stated at nominal value in accordance with the parent company's articies of

association and the entry In the Commercial Register.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve relstes to veluation and settlement of hedging instruments that meet the criteria of cash flow hadge

accounting. The Cempany applies cash flow hedge accounting to hedge commodity risk, exchange rate risk and Interest

rete risk. Changes in fair valus, which are an Ineffective part of the hedge relationship, are recognized in the statement of

profit or loss.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve includes revaluation of items, which, according to the Compeny's regulations, relates fo the

revaluation reserve, Including particularly:

- change in the fair value of the avallable-for-sale financial assets;

- differances between the net book value and the fair value of an Invastment property at the date of reclasgsification from
the propetty occupled by the Company to an investment property.

Retalned eamings

Retained samings Includa:

- the amounts arising from profit distribution/loss cover,

- the undistributed result from prior periods,

- the current reporting period profitfioss,

- the comections (profitloss) of prior period arrors,

- changes in accounting principles,

- other reserve capital as additional payments to equity,

- actuarial gains and losses from retirement bensfits.

| Unipetrol
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21.3.19. Trade and cther llabliitise

Liabllities, Including trads iabliities, are inltially stated at fair valus, increased by, in the case of financial liabllity not quallfisd
laathooe mm;wutlrmeMmh.tmuwonwduMMQnﬂy.utunorﬂzudmmmeeﬁbdve
nterest rate od.

The Company applies simpiified methods of valuation of liabliities measured at emortized cost If It does not distort Information
Included in the etatement of financlal position, In particular when the perlod until settiement of the Labiiity is not long.
Accruals are llablities due for goods racaived or services provided, but not paid, Invoiced or formally agreed with the asller,
together with amounts due fo employees.

Although It is sometimes necessary fo estimate the amount or iming of accruals, the related uncertainty is generally much
iower than it la for provisions.

21.3.20. Provislons

A provision Is a liabliity of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation
(fegal or constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable thet an cutfiow of resources embodying economic bensfits
will be required to ssitie the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be measured rellably. If the eflect is material,
provisions are detarmined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tex rate that reflects current market
aasessments of the time vaelue of money and, where appropriats, the risks spacific to the labifiy.

The amount recognizad as a provision la the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The provisions are reviewsd at the end of sach reporting period and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimats.

Provisions are not recogrized for future operating losses.

21.3.20.1. Environmenial provision

The Company creates provisions for future liabliiies due to reclamation of contaminated land or water or elimination of
harmful substances If there is such a legal or constructive obfigation. The environmental provision for reclamation is
periodically reviewed on the basis of axpert assessment.

21.3.20.2, Jubties bonuses and relirement benefiis

Under the Company’s remuneration piana, ita employses are entitied fo jubliee bonusas and retirement benefits. Jubiles
bonusas are pald to employees afier the elapsing of a defined number of years In service. Retirement beneflts are paid once
at retirement. The amount of retirement benefits and jubilea bonuses depends on the number of yeam of service and an
ampioyee's average remuneration.
The Jubliee bonuses are other long-term amployee benefits, whereas retirement and pension benefits are clessified as
retirement defined benefit plane.
The provision for jubliee bonuses, retirement and pension benefits Is oreated |n order to allocate costs to relevant periods.
The prasant value of those liabllities Is estimated et the end of aach reporiing periad by an indepandent actuary and adjusted
If there are any material indications impacting the value of the labiilties. The accumulated llablites equal discounted future
payments, considering the demographic and financial assumptions Including employee rotation, planned Increase of
remuneration and relate to the period ended at tha last day of the reporting ysar.
Actuarial gains and losses from:

-  post employment benefits are recognized In components of other comprehensive income,

- other employment benefits, including jubliea bonuses, are recognized In the atatemant of profit and loss.

21.3.20.3. Shield programs

Shield programs provision (restructuring provision) is created when the Company Inkiates a restructuring pian or announces
the main features of a restructuring pian {o those affected by & In a sufficlently specific manner to reise a valld expectation
in tham that the restructuring will be carmied out. A restructuring provision shall include only the direct expenditures arlsing
from the restrucluring, l.e. connected with the termination of employment {peid leave payments and compensations),
termination of lease contracts, dismantiing of assets.

21.3.204. COzemissions costs

The Company creates a provision for the estimated COz2 emissions during the reporting period In operating activity costs
(taxes and charges). Provision Is recognized based on the value of allowances taking Into account the weighted average
method. In case of a shortage of allowancea, the provision Is created based on the purchase price of alowance cancluded
in forward contracts or market quotations of alowances at the reporting dats.

21,3,.20.5. Other provisions

Other provieions Include mainly provisiona for legal proceedings and are recognized after consideration of all avallable
information, including opintons of independent experts. If on the basis of such Information It is imore lkely than not that a
pmemp.tt)-oblglﬂon exiats at the end of the reporting period, the Company restiriaéng Trayision (If the recognition criterla
ane .
I it ks more probabls that no present obfigation exiets st the end of the r= . jip Udifpany diecloses a contingent
liability, uniesa the poesibliity of an outflow of resources embodying scohomic Gl
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21.3.21. Government grant

Govemnment grants are transfers of resources to the Company by the govermment, government agencles and similar bodies
whathor local, natlonal or Intemetional, In retumn for past or futura compliance with certain conditions relating to the activities
of the entity.

Government grants are recognized In the statement of financlal position as deferred income when there is reasonable
assurance that It will be recelved and that the Company will comply with the conditions atteched to It.

Grants related to costs are presented as compenesation to the glven cost in the perod they are incurrad. Surplus of the
recelved grant over the value of the given cost is presented as other operating income. .

if the government grant relates to assets, it is presented net with the related asset and Is recognized In the statement of profit
or loas on @ systematic basis over the useful | fe of the reiated aeest through decreased depreciation charges. The treatment
regarding COz emission allowances granted Is described in note 21.3.11.

21.3.22. Statement of cash fiows

The consolidated statemant of cash flows Is prepared using the indirect method.

Cash and cash equivalenis presentad in the separate statement of eash flows include cash and cash equivalents iess bank
overdrafts, If they form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Dividends received are presanted in cash flows from investing activities.

Dividends pald are presentad in cash flows from financing activities.

Interast receivad from finance leases, loans granted, short-term securities and the cash pool system are presented in cash
flows from Investing aclivities. Other interests recelved are presanted in cash flows from operating activities.

Interest paid and provisions on bank loans and homowings recefved, cash pool facllity, debt securities Issued and finance
leaess are presentsd in cash flows from financing activities, Other intereste pakl are presented in cash fiows from opereting
activities.

Procesds aend outflows due to the saitfement of derivatives which are not recognized as hedge poslition are presented In
cash flows from investing activittes.

Lease payment axpenditures In relation to shori-term and low-cost leases as well as variable laase payments are presentad
in cash flows from financing activities.

21.3.23. Financlai instruments
Measurement of financial assets and liabllites

At initial recognition, the Company measures financial aessts and liebllities not qualified as at fair valus through profit or loss
{i.e. held for trading) at their fair value plus, In the case of a financial asset or a financial llability not at fair value through
profit or ioss, transaction costs that are directly ettributable to the acquisition or lesue of the financlal agset or financial liablity.
The Company dosa not classify instruments as measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss upon Initial recognition, i.e. does
not apply the fair vaiue options.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company measures item of financlal assets and llablilies &t amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method, excapt for derivatives, which are measured at falr value,
The Company uses simpiified methods of valuation of financiel assets and liabifities measured at amortized cost if it does
not digtort information included In the statement of financial position, in particular when the perlod untit the repayment of debt
or seitiement of the liabllity is not long.
Financlal assets measured at amoriized cost, whera the Company applies simpitfications, are accountad at inltial recognition
In the amount due, and later, including at the end of the reparting period, In the amount of the payment due less Impairment
allowances.
Financlal Kabilitias for which the Company applies simplifications are measured at inftial recognition and at a later date,
including et the end of the reporting period, In the amount of payment clus less expected credit lass impairment allowances.
With regard to equity Instrument, In particulsr quoted/unquoted shares held for trading, the Company classifies the
instruments a8 measured at fair value through other comprehensiva income.
Galns and lossas resulting from changes In falr value of derivalives, for which hedge accounting is not applicable, are
racognized In the cumrent year profit or loss.
The Company classifies financlal assets into one of the following categories:

- measured at amartized cost,

- measured at fair value through other comprahensive income,

- measured at falr value through profit or loss,

= hedging financial instruments.
The Company classifies debt financlal assets to the appropriate category depending on the business mode! of financlal
assats management and on the characteristics of contrectual cash flows for a given financlal asset.
The Company as assets measured at amortized cost classifles trade receivables, loans granted, other financial receivables
as wall as cash and cash equivalants.
At the moment of initial recognition, the Company classifies equity instruments, i.e. shares In other entities, to the catagory
of financial instruments measured at falr value through other comprehansive income

- measured at amortized cost,
- measured at far value through profit or loss,
- hedging finenclel Inetruments.
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24.3.23. Financlal instruments (continued)

The Company as liabiliies measured at amortized cost clasaifies trade llablities, joans, borrowinga and bonds. Liabilities on
:lemuﬂvaa not designated for hedge accounting are classified by the Compeny as measuned at fair vaiue through profit or
oss.

The Company classifies to the calegory of hedging financial Instruments, financlal assets and Habiiies which constitute
derivative hedging cash flows and fair vaive,

Measursmeant of financial assets at amortized cost

The Company applies the effective interest rate method to measure financial assets et amortized cost.

Trade recelvables after initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using the effective Interest rate method, Including
impairment allowances, whils frade receivables with a maturity of leas than 12 months from the date of recognition (1. not
including the financing component) and not appointed to factoring, are not discounted and are measured at nominal value.

Measurement of inancial assels at felr value through other comprahenaive income

Gains and losses on a financlal asset constituting an aquity inetrument for which was applied the opfion of falr vaius through
other comprehaneive Income Is recognized In other comprehensive Income, sxcept for revenues from received dividends.
Measurement of financial asssls ai falr value through profit or josa

Gains or loases on the measurement of a financial asset that [8 classifled as measured at falr value through profit or losa are
recognized In profit or loss during the period In which they were recognized. Galns or losees from the valuation of ltems
mesasured at fair value through profit or joss also Include interest and dividend incoma.

Measurement of hedging inencial Instruments
Hedging financial insirumants are measured in accordance with the principles of hedge accounting.

impairment of financisl assets
The Company recognizes impairment allowances due to expected credit losses on financlal assete measured at amortized
cost or measured at fair value through other comprehensive Income {with the exception of Investments In capital assats and
contract assets).

The Company uses the following models for determining impaiment allowances:

= general mode! (basic),

= simpitfted modal.

The general model is applisd wmcmmmnnnMHMmmmmmmmmgrmanmmmﬂ
and for debt nstruments measured st fair value through other comprehensive income.

in the general modal, the Company monitors the changes In the fevel of credit risk asscciated with a given finencial aseet
and classifies financlal asseis to one of the three stages of impalment allowances based on the observation of the change
Tn the credit riek lavet In relation to the inltial recognition of the Instrument.

Depending on the clasalfication to particular stages, the Impaiment alowance is estimeted In the 12-month horizon (stage
1) or in the life horizon of the instrument (stage 2 and stage 3).

On each day eniing the reporting period, the Company conslders the indications resuiting In the classification of financial
aseals to particular stages of determining Impaimment allowances. Indications may Include changes in the deblor's rating,
saricus financial problems of the debtor, a aignificant unfavourable change In its economic, legal or market environment.
For the purpose of estimating the expected credit loss, the Company applies dafault probability levels based on market credit
quotes of derivatives for entities with a given rating and from a given sactor.

The Company Includes information about the future In the parameters of the expected loss estimation model by calculsting
the probabliity parameters of Insolvency besed on cument market quotes,

The simpiified mode! Is applied by the Company for trade recelvables.

In the aimpiified modet, the Company does not monltor changes In the credit risk level during the Iife and estimales the
expectad cradk loes in the horizon up to maturity of the Instrument.

In paricular, in case of inecivency (“defeult”) event, the Company recognizes that the contractor defaulted after explration
80 days after the due date of recelvabiles.

For the purpose of estimating the expected credit logs, the Company applies the provision matrix estimatsd on the basila of
histortcal lovels of repayment and recoverias from recelvables from coniractors.
mcompanyhdudeolnhmnﬁonmmmwelnmeapplhdmInhoupecbdmdtlouuﬂnnﬂonmdel
through the management adjustment of the basic insolvency probabiiity parameters.

The expectad credit loss Is caicuiated when the receivable ls recognized in the statement of financial posltion and ls updated
on each subsequent day ending the reporting period, depending on the number of ovardue days of the mcelvable.

For debt financial instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive incoms, losses or gains (reversal of loss)
due io Impalrment, regardiess of the stage In which the write-down Is calculated, are recognizad in profit or ioss In
comespondance with other comprehensive Income (the impairment allowance does not reduce the camying amount of the
financial assst).

The expectad credit loss calculated at the moment of Initial recognition of the financlal asset, and any subsaquent increase
of the expected credit loss, regardiess of the stage in which the write-down |s calcuiated, are recognized in the profit or loss.
ThoMpwdlﬂmlnmmMImhmmbhmmmnmmmduhl&muumrvdube
overdue or impaired. For asssis measured et amortized cost using ef fEstsale, the carrying amount of the asset
bmalwhhdbydhemnﬂmhﬂnmhﬂm(mﬂ)wmmln 4 e hebT g ohe financlal asset. The adjustment
le recognized &s a revenue or expense for the period, respactively. ?_,
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21.3.23. Finenclal Instruments (continued)

Transfers
In the Company, there were no particular circumetances for the reclassification of financlal Instruments measured at fair

value through profit or loss.

21.3.24, Lease

The Company as a lessee
Rights resulting from lease, rental, hire or other agresments which meet the dsfinition of a lease as per IFRS 16 are
recognisad as right of use underlying assets within the framework of non-current agsets with a comesponding lease liabilities.

Initial recognition and measuremant
The Company recognises the right of use asset as well as the lease llablfity on the date of commencement of the lease.
On the date of commencement the Company measurad the right of use asset at cost

The cost of the right of use asset Is Inclusive of tha following:

= the amount of the initlal measurement of the lease ilabllity,

- all lease payments made on or before the date of commencement, loss any lease incentives recsived,

- all initial costs directly incurred by the lesses, and

- esfimated costs to be incurred by the lesses in connectlon with the dismantling and removal of underlying asests, the
refurblshmant of premisas within which they were located, or the refurbishment of underlying assats to the condiition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless these costs are Incurred with the aim of creating stocks.

Leasa payments included In the evaluaficn of lease Sabllity include:

- fixed lease payments;

- varable lease payments, which depend on an index or a rate, initially measurad using the index or rate as at the
commencerment date;

- amounts that are expected to be paid by the lessee as part of the guaranteed resldual valus;

- the c:“ﬁ exercise price, should it be assumed with reascnabls cerainty that the Company shall declde to exercise the
call option;

- penalty payments for terminstlon of a lease, unless it can be assumad with reasonable certainty that the Company shall
not terminate the lease.

Variable payments, which do not depend on an index or a rete should not be taken into account when calculating lease

liabliity. Such payments are recognisad in ihe profit or Ioas In the period of the occurrence which renders them payable.

The lease liability on the commencemaent date shall be calculated on the basls of the current lease paymenis that are payable

by that date and discounted by the Incremental borrowing rates of the lesses.

The Company does not discount iease liabilities by the lease Interest rate as the calculation of such rates requires information

known only to the lessor {the non-guaranteed final value of the leased aseet as well as tha direct coata incurred by the

lessor).

Delermining the fessee’s incremenial borrowing rale

Lessea’s incramental borowing raiee were specified as the sum of:

- the riek free rete, based on the Interest Rate Swap (IRS) In accordance with the maturity of the discount rate, and the
relevant basic rate for the given currency, as well as

- the Company's credit risk premium based on the credit margin calculated inciusive of the credit risk segmentation of all
companies which have antered into iease agresments.

Subseguent measurament

After the commencemant date, the Company measures the right of use asset applying the cost model.

In applying the cost model, the Company shali measure the cost of the right of use asset:

- Isss any accumuleted depreciation and accumulated impairment losses; and

- adjusted In respect of any updates to the measurement of lease llebliity not resuiting In the necessity for recognition of
a sepearate asset.

After the dale of commencement the Company shat measure the lease liability by:

- increasing the carrying amount to reflect Interest on the isass llability,

-  decrsasing the canrying amount to reflect any lease payments made, and

- remeasuring the camying amount to reflect any reassessment or leass modifications or to revise In-substancs fixed
lease paymenis.

The Company shall remeasure the lease liabllity in cases where there is a change in future lease payments as a result of a

change In the Index or rats used to determine lease payments {e.g. @ change In payment assoclated with the rght of

pempetual use), In cases where there is & change in the amount expected by the Company to be payable under the resldusl

amount guarantee, or if the Company reassessas the likelihood of the exercise of the call option, or the exension or

termination of the lease.

Updating the lease llabiilty aiso adjusts the velue of the right of use asset. In a sluation where the carrying amount of the

right of use asset has been reduced to zero, further reductions In the measurement of the lease [fabllity shall be recognised

by the Company &s profit or loss.

Depreciation

Tha right of use asset Is depreciated linsarly over the shortar of the (4 arigasy the period of lsase or the useful
life of the underlying asset. However In cases where the Company £ bilraaroay =itk that it will regain ownership of
the asset prior to the end of the lease term, right of use shail be djpreciaiSérofl B dey 47 commencement of the lease

untll the end of the useful life of the asset.

The usaful life of right of use asset Is detarmined In the same manrizr a8 gnd equlpm';_-r‘nkt.
34
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PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {in thousands of CZK}

21.3.24. Lease {continued)

The Company has leases agreemeants regarding mainly:

Land, Including:

-  perpetual usufruct of lend for a fixed peried of up to 80 years,

- land for petrol stations and motorway service aneas concluded for a specified pariod up 1o 30 years and for an indefinite
period.

Buildings and construction, Including petrol stations, storage tank, office apaces for a fixsd pariod up io 30 yoars.

Vehicies and other, Including:

= raliway tank concluded for a spacified period of 3 fo 10 years,

= cars for a fiead pariod up fo 3 ysars,

- locomotives for a fixed pariod up to 3 years.

impairment
The Company appiiea IAS 36 iImpairment of Assets to determine whether the right of uee aseset Is Impaired and to account
for any impairment lose Identified.

Exsmptions, simpilficetions and practical solutions in the appiication of IFRS 18
Exa

mptions
Following agresments within the Company ane not included within the scope of IFRS 18:
- lease for the exploraiion or use of naiural resources,
- [icences granted and recognised In accordance with IFRE 15 ~ “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”, and
= |sawe of intangible asests in accordance with |AS 38 - intangible Assets.
The Company daes not apply IFRE 16 to lease agreements or similar for intangfole aseets.

Simphifications and practical solutions
Short-term lease

The Company applies a praciical solution for asset classes In relation to short-term lease contracte, which are characterieed
by a meximum possible contract term of up to 12 months, including any options o extand.

Simpéfications regarding theae contracts Involve the settiement of leasa payments as costs:

- ona straight-ine basls, for the duration of the lease agreement, or

- another systematic method, If it better reflects the way of spreading the benafits gained by the user in time.

Leases of low-value assels

The Company doss not apply the rules concaming recognition, measurement and presentation outiined in IFRS 18 to lease

agreemaents of iow-value aesete.

As low-value aassta are considarad assets which, whon are new, have the value up to CZK 100 thousand for each concluded

leasa agreement.

Simpifications In respect of such contracts dare due to the setiiement of costs on:

- @ streight-fine basls for the term of the lease contract; or

- another systematic method basis shoukd it be more representative of the ime pettemn of the user's benefit.

An asset covered by a lease must not be counted as a low-value asset If the aseet would typically not be of low value when

new. As low-value itsms, the Company Inciudes for example: ges cylindem, coffes machines, and small ems of fumiture.

The underlying assst may have a low-value only If:

-  the Company lessee may benefit from uee of the underlying asset liself or In conjuncion with other resources which are
readlly avallable to him, and

- the undariying asset is not highly dependesnt on or related fo other aseecls.

If the Company lsseee transfers asset inlo subleasing or expects the asset io be transfermed o subleasing, then the main

leasa does not qualify aa lsase of a low-value asset.

the lsase ferm: indefinite coniracis

When establishing the term for Indefinite leass contracts, the Company detenmines the lease period, in which termination of

the coniract will not be Jusiified by making a professional judgment and taking into account, among others:

-  axpanditure incurred In connection with the contract or

- paiential costs connected with the temination of the iease contract, Including the coste Involved In obtaining & new
lease contracts, such as negatiation costs; realiccation coats, costs of identifying other underlying asset suitable for the
lessae's needs; costs of infegrating a new asset into the Company’s operations; or termination penalties and simiar
costs, Inciuding costs associated with retuming the underlying aasat in a contractually apecified condition or io a
contractually spacifiad location or

- existing businsss plans and other existing contracts justifying the use of the lsased item In the given period.

In cases where the costs conneciad with the termination of the iease contract are substantial, the lease torm adopted I

equal to that adopted for the depreciation period of & aimilar fixed asaet with parametsrs aimiiar to the subject of the lsass.

In casas where expendlture incurred In connection with the contract Is substantial, the lease term adopted is equal to that of

the expectsd perlod of aconomic benefits derived from the incured expenses.

The value of the incumred expenses represents a separate asset to the right of use asset.

Separating non-isase camponeris

From contracts, thet Include lease and non-lease components, the Compas:
components separataly for all asest clasees e.g. service of assets coRgRINE- A
consideration based on the terms of the contract, unleas all non-leass figiTs E immaterial in the context of the

BpArales and recognizes non-lease



PETROTRANS, sa.r.0.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of CZK)

21.3.24. Lease {continued)

Professional judgement

Detarmining the lease form

In detemmining the jeasa term, the Company congiders all important facts and events resulting in existence of the economic
incentives to make use of the option to extend the lease or not to axerclse the option of its termination.

The Company alsc makes a profeasional Judgment to determine the period of contract enforceablfity (Ieass term In which
termination of the contract will not be justifiad) in the case of contracts conciuded for en indefinite pericd.

An assessment of a lease term is carrfed out on the date of commencement of the lease. A reassessmeant is made upon the
occurrence of elther a significant event or a eignificant change In clrcumstances, that the lessse controls, that impact such
an asssssment.

Estimations
The useful life of right of use asset
The estimated useful life of ight of use asset is determined in the same manner as for property, plant and equipment.

Determining the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

Due to the fact that the Company does not heve information regarding the Interest rate for lease contracts, it uses the
Incremental borrowing rate to measure leage liabilities, that the Company would have to pay, to borrow, over a similar term
and with a simitar security, the funds in a given currency necessary 1o cbtaln an asset of a similar value to the right of ues
asset In a eimliar economic environment.

The Company as a Lessor
When the Company Is the lessor, the lease shall be classified as finance or operations lsase on the day of the
commencement of the lease.
In order to classify a Isase as described above, the Company assesses whather all risks and rewards assoclated with
ownership of the underlying assets ara transferred substantlally to the lessee. In case of the substantial transfer of all risks
and rewards, the leasing is classified as a finance leasa. If the substantial transfer of risks and rewards does not take place
It Is classified as an operations leasa.
Determination of whether the risks and rewards are to be transfermed is carried out based on an assessment of the content
of the sconomic transaction.
When assessing the classification of leases the Company cortain considers a number of possibilities, such as whether
ownership of the asset Is to be transfermed to the lesses before the end of the lease term as well as the relationship beiween
the lease terms and the useful life of the asset In questions, even in cases where the legal fitle of the assst Is not to be
tranaferred.
If a contract containe both lease and non-lease components, the Company shall allocate the conslderation In the centract to
each lease component in accordance with IFRS 15.
On the date of commencement of the lease the lessor derecognizes any assets leased as part of a financial lease In its
statement of financial position and Includes them as recelvables equal to the value of the net Investment In the lease.
On the date of commencement of the lease, leasa payments Included in the measurement of the net investment in the lease
comprisa of the following payments for the right of use of the underlying assets, which have not yet been received on the
date of commencement
- fixed lease payments, incluslve of in-substance fixed leass payments, minus any lease Incantives;
- varigble lease payments, which depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement dats;
-  aliguaranteed residual valuas awarded to the lessor by the lesses, an entity connected to the lesses or an Independent
third party;
- the call exercise price, should it be assumed with reasonable certainty that the Company shall decide to exarclse the
call opfton;
-  penalty fee for the termination of the lease, should the conditions of the lease allow for the termination of the iease by
the Company.
i the Company conveyed to another entity the right to use an assetunder the finance leass, the present value of the minimum
lease payments and unguaranteed residual value is recognised in the statemant of financlal position as recelvables with the
division into short and long-term part. The minimum leage payments and unguaranteed residual value are discounted using
Interest rate implicit in the lease, l.e. rate at which the sum present value of the minimum leasa paymenis, unguaranteed
residual value and initlal direct costs of conclusion of a contract equal the Talr value of the loased asset,
Leasa payments and any unguarantead resldual value Is equal to the sum of,
) the fair value of the isased asset and
Il any initial direct costs of the lessor.
Assets leased by the Company to other entlfles for use on the baets of an operalional lease are accounted for as Company's
agsets. Lease payments from opeorations leases are recognised by the lessor linearly as revenue from the sele of products
and services.
The methods of calculating of Impalrment allowances for assats used under finance lease are simitar to the ones applled for
assets owned by the Company.

I Unipetrol
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SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 {In thousands of CZK)

21.3.24. Leasa {continuad)

Subleases

In respact of subleases, the Company operatas as both a lessee and lessor In relation to the same underlying essets. Such
contracts are classified as operational or finance leasea using the same crileria applied by the lessor, however they are
considered in relation Io right of use as part of the main lease rather than In relation fo the undarlying assats. If the main
lease Is a short-tarm lease, the Company classifics the subloase as @n oporational lease.

21.3.28. Contingent assets and liabilities

The Company discioses at the end of reporting period information on confingent assets If the inflow of rescurces smbodying

economic banefits is probable. If it Is practicable the Company estimates tha financial Impact of contingent assets valuing

them according to the principles of valuation provisions.

At the end of raporiing period the Company discloses information on contingent liabillties If:

= [t hes a possibie obligation, which arose as a result of past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only when
one or more uncertain future events occur that are not fully controlled by the Company, or

~ [ hes a current obligation, which arose as a reault of past events, but an outflow of funds have sconomic benefits in It,
Is not probable or the Company s not able fo valuaie lieblilies rellably snough.

;hoComplnydounotdlluloutmeonﬁmmlablnywhenﬂnpmbuhllllynfouﬂlowulmmmmmm
ramote.

21.3.20. Events after the reporting period

Subssquent events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable thet occur between the end of the

mm:mummnﬁnWMmmmm.mmdmmmmnbe

Iden i

- thows, that provide evidence of conditions that existad as at the end of the reporting period (avents after the reporting
period requiring adjusiments) and
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22, Application of profeasional judgement and assumption

The preparation of weparate financlal statements In conformity with IFRSs requires management to maks jxigments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policles and reported amounts of assets and liabiites, equity,
revenues and expenses. The estimates and asaociated assumptions are based on historical experience and various ather
factors that ere belleved o be reasonable under the circumetances, the results of which form the basis of making the
Judgmenia about carrying values of assets and liabliities that ane not readtly apparent from other sources. Actual resutte may
differ from these astimates.

In the matters of considerable weight, the Company’s management bases ks estimates on opinions of independent experts.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized In the period in which the estimete Is revisad If the revision affects only that period or in the pariod of the revision
and future periods If the revision affects both current and future perlods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the financial siatemenis and
estimates with a significant risk of materlal adjustment In the next year are discussed in notes: 7. Tax credit{expenss),
8. Proparty, plant and equipment, 8. intanglble assets, 16. Financial instruments and 17. Leass.

The accounting policies described above have been appliad consletently to all pariods presented In thesa separate finencial
statements.

1T Unipetrol



PETROTRANS, s.r.o.
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2020 (in thousands of CZK)

23. The parent company and structure of the consolidated Group

23.1. Group structure

The following table shows subsidiaries and Joint operations forming the consolidated group of ORLEN Unipetrol 2.s., and
the parent company’s interest In the capital of subsidiaries and joint operations held either diractly by the parent company or
Indlradly by tha conuolldata uubsklaﬂes into Ihe Operating negmento { 31 Deoamber _2020)

ORLEN Unipetrol a.s.
Milevskd 2085/5, 140 GO Praha 4, Czach Republic Corporate Functions  wwwv.orlenunipetrol.cz

Subsidiaries conscfidatad in full method
HC VERVA Litvinov, a.5.

8.K. Neumanna 1588, Litvinov, Czach Republic - 70.85% Corporate Functions  www.hokel-ltvinov.cz
Nadace ORLEN Unipstrol
Zihed 1, 438 01 Litvinov, Czech Republic - 100.00% Corporate Functions www.nadacsorenunipatrof.cz
PARAMO, s.s.
Plerovské 580, Svitkov, 530 08 Pardubics, Czech Republic 100.00% - Refining WWW.DAMIMO.CZ
PETROTRANS, s.1.0.
Sifelni3nd 2221, 182 00 Prahs 8, Czech Republic 0.82% B8.37% Rafining Www.pstrolrans.cz
SPOLANA g.1.0.
ul. Price 857, 277 11 Nerwiovice, Czech Repubfs - 100.00% Patrochemical www.spolana.cz
ORLEN Unipstrol Deutschiand GmbH
Paul Ehrlich Str. 1/B, 63225 LangenHessen, Gemany 0,10% £9,90% Petrochemiosl www.orlenunipeirol.de
CORLEN Unipetrol Doprava a.r.0.
Litvinov - RiiZodol &.p 4, 438 70 Lhvinov, Ceech Republic 0.12% $6.88% Rafining www.orlsnunipetroldoprava.cz
ORLEN Unipetrol RPA s.r.c.
Litvinov - Z&kebl 1, 438 70 Livinov, Cxach Republic 100,00% - Refining www,orlenunipetrolrpa.cz
Patrochemical
Enargy
Corporate Funciions
Retall
ORLEN Unipetrol Hungary Kit.
2040 Budadirst, Pusicis Tivadar utce 12, Hungary - 10¢.00% Relininpg www.orlsnunipetrol.hu
ORLEN Unipetrol Slovakia s.r.o.
Jabikova 2, Rufinov, 821 03 Bratislava, Slovak Repubiic 13.04% 80.88% Rafining waw,orleunipetrol.ek
Retall
ORLEN Unicre a8,
Revolunl 84/%2%.p. 1521,0slf nad Labam, Czech Republic 100.00% - Corporate funciions  www.unicre.cz
Joint oparations consolidated based on shares in xessts and labilities
Butadien Kralupy a.5.
0. Wichlerisho 810, 278 01 Kralupy nad Vitavou, -
Caech Republls L 51.00% Petrochemical vavw.butadien.cx

The Group has a 70 95% Inhmst In HC VERVA LITVINOV, a.s., the remalning non-controlling Interest In this company is
ownad by municlpality of Litvinov.

24. Evants after the reporting date

As at 1 January 2021, UNIPETROL, a.s., the shareholder of the Company changed His business name to ORLEN Unipetrol
a.s. and as at 1 February 2021 UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0., the sharsholder of the Company changed it business name to
QORLEN Unipstrol RPA s.1.0.

The Company’s management is not aware of any other events that have occurred since the balance sheet date that would
have any material impact on the financial statements as at 31 December 2020.

¢/
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PETROTRANS, a.1.0.
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28, Statement of the Management Board and approval of the financial ststements

The Management Board of PETROTRANS, 8.r.0. hereby deciares that to ite best knowledge the foregoing financial
statements and comparative data were prepared In complisnce with the accounting principles applicable to the Compeny In
force (cieciosed In note 21) and that they reflect true and fair view on financial position and financlal result of the Company,
including basic rigks and exposures.
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Signsture of statutory representative

2T
Pawel Lafboz
Exacutive Head

CIE Unipetrol



PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
with registered office at St¥elnitn4 2221/50, 182 00 Praha 8
Corporate ID: 25123041

entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague
Section C, Enclosure 124377

REPORT ON RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CONTROLLING PERSON AND THE
CONTROLLED PERSON AND BETWEEN THE CONTROLLED PERSON AND
OTHER PERSONS CONTROLLED BY THE SAME CONTROLLING PERSON

in 2020

in accordance with article 82 of the Act No, 90/2012 Coll., on Business Companties and Cooperatives (Act on
Business Corporations), as amended (hereinafter the ,Act on Business Corporations®)



Financial period from 1.1.2020 to 31.12.2020 is the vesting period for this Report on relations between the
controlling person and the controlled person and between the controlled person and other persons controlled
by the same controlling person (hereinafter the ,,Report on Relations®).

The structure of relations between the entities
Controlled Person

PETROTRANS, s.r.0. with registered office at Stfelnitné 2221/50, 182 00 Praha 8, Corporate ID: 25123041,
entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section C, Enclosure 124377
(hereinafter ,PETROTRANS, s.r.0.%).

Controlling Persons

UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0. with registered office at Litvinov - ZéluXi 1, 436 70, Corporate ID: 27597075,
entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Regional Court in Usti nad Labem, Section C, Enclosure
24430 (hereinafter ,UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0.“).

UNIPETROL, a.s. with registered office at Milevskd 2095/5, 140 00 Praha 4, Corporate ID: 616 72 190,
entered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Municipal Court in Prague, Section B, Enclosure 3020
(hereinafter ,,UNIPETROL, a.s.“)., which is the sole member of UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o.

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spélka Akcyjna with registered office at Chemikéw 7, PLOCK, Poland
which was the majority shareholder of UNIPETROL, a.s. and since October 1, 2018 is the sole member of
UNIPETROL, a.s.

Other Controlled Persons
The entities controlled by the Controlling Person — Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spélka Akcyjna are
members of business group ,,PKN ORLEN $.A.“, whose scheme is shown in Appendix No. 2.

The entities controlled by UNIPETROL, a.s. are members of PKN ORLEN S.A. business group and are also
members of ,,UNIPETROL® business group, whose scheme is shown in Appendix No. 1.

The role of the Controlled Person
The role of PETROTRANS, s.r.o0. within the business group is transport of fuels and the related activities

The method :nd means of controlline

UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. is the majority partner of PETROTRANS, s.r.0. and has direct influence in
PETROTRANS, s.r.0.. UNIPETROL, a.s. is a minority partner of PETROTRANS, s.r.0. and the sole member
of UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.o. and applies indirectly decisive influence

Polski Koncern Naftowy ORLEN Spélka Akcyjnaje which was the majority shareholder of UNIPETROL, a.s.
and since October 1, 2018 is the sole member of UNIPETROL, a.s. and has indirect influence in
PETROTRANS, s.r.0. through UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0. and UNIPETROL a.s.

The list of actions undertaken in the last financial period made on instigation or in the interest of the Controlling
Person or entities controlled by such entity, on condition such actions concern assets exceeding 10% of the
controlled entity’s equity capital identifizd in the last financial statements.

In the vesting period there were no actions carried out in accordance with § 82 of the Act on Business
Corporations, section 2, letter d.

The list of muiual arrcements between the Controlled Person and the Conirolling Person or between the
Controlled Persons

The mutual agreements among PETROTRANS, s.r.0, UNIPETROL RPA, s.r.0., UNIPETROL, a.s. and Polski
Koncern Naftowy Spélka Akcyjna and Other Controlled Persons were concluded on the standard terms, while
agreed and provided performances or counter-performances were based on the standard terms of business
relations.




The list of mutual agreements with the details is enclosed in Appendix No. 3.

The conclusion

The Statutory Representatives PETROTRANS, sr.0. based on available information declares that
PETROTRANS, s.r.0. incurred no detriment, special advantage or disadvantage in accordance with the article
82 (4) of the Act of Business Corporations as a result of any contracts, acts or measures taken between entities
in business group. No risks arise from the relations between entities in business group to PETROTRANS, s.r.0.
except those arising from standard participation in international business group.

The company’s Statutory Representatives prepared the Report on Relations based on information available on
the date of the Report on Relations.

The Report on Relations is to be read in conjunction with the Appendix No. 1, 2 and 3.

Prague, 5.-02. 2021

On behalf of the statutory representatives of PETROTRANS, s.r.o.

o

Pawaed i_-.ilm'?:.ﬂ.'_il *
Stafutory rejiresentative



Capital Group of ORLEN Unipstrol as. - Controlled Companies
1 January 2020 - 31 Dacamber 2020

Compary controlled by ORLEN Unipetral a.s.

Companies with direct share of UNPETROL, 8.8,
Corrpanies with indirect share of UNIFETROL, a.s.

| 1. UNPETROL RPA, 0.1.0., 1& 275 67 075

1.1 HCVERVA Livhov, .., 1084048069

1.2 UNPETROL DOPRAVA, 8.1.0., K840 49 701
1.3 UNIPETROL DEUTSCHLAND GmbH, IS HRB 34345
1.4 UNPETROL SLOVENSKDO, 8.r.0., I 357 77 067

1.5 UNPETROL RPA Hungary KIL, IC 13-00-181774

1.6 SPOLANA s.r.0,, I8 451 47 787

1.7 Nadace Unipetrol, IC 066 81 544

1.8 PETROTRANS, s.r.0., I 251 25 041

2. Unipatrol vizkumn# vzddlévaci cantrum, ., I€ 82248

13, PARAMIO, 0.9, 1€ 461 73 388

4 Butadien Kralupy n.s., IC 27883 908

Ostatni spolecnosti s podilem ORLEN Unipetrol as.

1. UNIVERSAL BANKA, a.0, IC 492 64 088

2 ORLENHOLDING MALTA LIMITED, I C 39845

T 4 r.:lf' B
ungirscty contrailed
company

Residenta

112020 .122020

Since 1.1.2021 change of the business nama from URFETROL, a.s. to 0FRLEN)
Unipatrol a.s.

Litvinov, Zd&u2( 1, Czech
republic

Litvinov , S.1C
Nsymanna 1608, Czech
republc

100,00 100,00

70,85 70,88

Livihov, Rizoddl 4,
Czach republe

Langen, PaukEhrich-
Strasge 1B, Germany

Bratislave - meataké
dest Rudinov, Jadiova
2, Slovakia

2040 Budabrs, Puskis
Tivadar utca 12,
Hungary

Neratovice, ul. Price
857, Czech republic
Litvinov, Z#idi 1, Czech
republic

Praha 8, Lbef\,
Stfeiniind 2221750,
Czech republic

Ustl nad Labem,
Revolulnl 1521/ 84,
Czech republic
Perdublce, Svikov,
Parovskd 560, Czech
republc

Kralupy nad Vitavou, O,
Wichterisho 810, Czech
republic

89,68 99,08

85,90 86,66

100,00 100,00

100,00 100,00

100,00 100,00

99,37 88,57

100,00 100,00

100,00 100,00

61,00 §1.00

Fraha 1, Sencvééné
rdmést[ 16684, Czech
republic

Level 3, Triq r-Rampa
ta' San Gian, Ballta
Bay, 5t Julans,
5TH0B2, Maite

1646 16,45

0,50 0,50

From 1.2.2021 change of the business nams o ORLEN Unipetrol RPA a.r.0.

0,12% of share owned by ORLEN Unipsirol a.s.
From 1.2.2021 change of the business nams {o ORLEN Unipeirol Doprava .r.0.

0,10% of share aowned by ORLEN Unipeirol a.s.

From 1.2.2021 change of the business name to ORLEN Unipeirel Deutschiand
GmeH

13,04% of shars ow ned by ORLEN Unipetre! a.s.

From 1.2.2021 change of the business name to ORLEN Unipelrot Siovens:c
s1.0.

From1.2.2021 change of the business name to ORLEN Unipsirol Hungary Kit.

From 1.2.2021 change of tha name o Nadaca ORLEN Unipetrol

0,83% of share ow ned by ORLEN UNPETROL as.

From 1.1.2021 chenge of the business name to ORLEN UniCRE a.a.

48,00% of shares owned by SYNTHOS Kraupy a.s.

12,24% of sheres owned by ORLEN Unipstrol RPA 8.r.0.

©9,50% of share owned by PKNORLENS.A.




[Ag pendb Ma. 2
Cajpltal Group of PKN ORLIN 8.A. - Controlled Companke
1 January 2028 - 3 Decamber 2020

Company cantroitsd by PEH ORLEH &.A

3, AB ORLEN Baltlon Retall (previosly AB Ventus Nafta)
d. ANWIL 8.A.

8. Inowroclawskie Kopainia Soll "SOLING" S.A.

8. Kopainia Soll Lubled sp. 2 0.0.

7. ORLEN Administracia &p. z 0.0,

B. ORLEN Asfalt 8p. 2 0.0,

8.1 GRLEN Asfall Cesin Repubiim 5.r.0.

9. ORLEN Serwle S.A.

9.1 ORLEN Servios Caski rapubiia n.r0,

9.2 UAS ORLEN Servics Listuva (previcaly UAS BMAS )
10. ORLEN Budonaft 8p. 2 0.0,

11. ORLEN Cantrum Serwiscwe 8p. z 0.0,

12. ORLIN Deutechiand GmbH
12.1 QRLENE irisbagessliechaft mbH
13, ORLEN BMD 8p. 2 0.0,
14. Orlan Holding Malta Limitad
14.1 Orlen insuranca Lid,
18, ORLEN KolTrans 3.A.
16. ORLEN Contrum Ustug Korporasyjnych sp. & 0.0,
17. Orlan Laboratorium 8.A.
18, ORLEN Oohrona 8p. 2 6.0.
18.1 ORLEN Apsauga UAR
19, ORLEN OIL Bp. 2 0.0,
20. ORLEN Pallwa Bp. £ 0.0,
21, ORLIN Projekt 8.A.
22, ORLEN Upstream 8p. z 0.0,
22, 1. Orlen Upstream Canede Lid
2. 1.1 1420828 Aherin Lid,
22, 1.2 OneEx Cperations Parinsrship
3.1.3 Flerkdas Produotion GP Lid.
1,31 8T1810 NB. Ltdl,
12.1.4 KCK Atlantio Holdings Ltd.
2_1.4.1 Paridas Production LP
2.2 FX Snergy Inc.
2321 Frontler Exploration, Inc.
77.2.2 X Energy Netheriands Perinership C.V,
i.2.2.1 FX Enargy Natherlanda B.V.

73.2.2.1,1 FX Energy Folska Sp. z c.0. w v kdec] (previosly FX Energy F

II:I ORLEN Aviation .p. 0.0,
24. ORLEN Poludnile 8.A,

(741 Ensrgamedie 8p. z 0.0,

24,3 KONSORGIUM OLEJOW FRZEPRACOWANYCH - ORGANIZACIA OC

4.3 Bloenergy Project Sp. z 0.0,

74,4 BOZEC Sp. z 0.0.

Bhip - Ssrvice 8.4,
| ORLEN Capltal AB
. Baltia Powar 8p.z 0.0,
. Bassll Orlan Polyolefins 3p. z 0.0
.l Basell ORLEN Polyolefing SprzedaZ Bp. z 0.0,
29. Plock] Park Przem yst Te logl SA
41 Contrum Edukac) 8p. z 0.0.
$0. ORLEN Usiugl Fnannowa
31. Bigma BIS B.A.
92, ORLEN Wind 1 8p. 2 0.0. W organizach
33. ORLEN Wind 2 8p. z 0.0, W organizach
34. ORLEN Wind 3 8p. z 0.0, w orgsnizacli
30, ORLEN INTERNATIONAL TRADING {SURHOU) Go., Ltd.
38, ORLENVC sp. 2 0.0. w organizes]|

97. ENERGA 8.A.

37,1 Snerga Cantrum Usiug Wapdinych 8p. 2 0.0,

37.5 Energa Loglatyka Sp. Z 0.0,
2768 Contrum Badew czo-Rozw ojew s Im. M. Faradeye Sp. 2 0.0,

37.0.1 ENERGA SLOVAKIA s.r0.

37.10 Enspiricn 8p. Z 0.0,

37.11 ENERGA Qlw letienie Sp. z 0.0,

a7.12 ENERGA-OPERATOR 8A

87 . 12.1 ENERSA-OPERATOR Wylkonaw siw o Bekirosnargetyozne Bp. 2 ¢
37.13 Enarga OZE S.A.

37.13.1 Bnerga Bekirow nle Ostrolgka S.A.

5714 Enarga Kogenaracja 8p. 2 0.0,
27.16 COGT Gdariek 8p. z 0.0.

36,1 Ruch Detel B.A. w Likw idac]l

382 Ruch Markefing 9p. z 0.0,

28.3 Ruch Meruchomosel V Sp. z 0.0,

38.4 Fincores Buainass Solutions Sp. z 0. 0.

Patidancy

Prague
Juodeliisl
Riga, Latvia

Talkn, Estonia

Vilnlus

Wioctwak

Inowrociaw
Warszewa

Plock
Ploek
Pardubles
Plock
Litvinow
Juodetidal
Limanowa

Opole

Emshom
Hamburg
Plock
at, Jullans, Malta
§t. Julans, Maka
Plock
Plock
Plock
Plock
Juodelidal
Krakdw
Widaika
Plock
Warszawa
Calgary
Calgary
Caigary
Caigary
Saint John
Caigary
Caigary
Salt Lake Cly
Salt Lahe Cly
Salt Lahs Cly
Utrecht

Warazew a

Warszawa
Trzehinla
Trzebinia
Jadlioze

Warszawe

Konoprica

Warezawa
Stookholm
Warszawa
Plock
Faock
Plock
Pook
Warszewa
Warszawa
Warszewa
Warszawa
Warszawa
Buehou
Warszawa

Gdaripk
Gdariek
Gdefok
Gdarek
Fock
Gdafmk
Stavkholn
Gdafmk
Gdatiek
Bratizlava
Gdaek
Sopat
Gdarmk
Supsk
Gaarsk
Outrolgka
Ostrolgka
Ostroleka

Gdarek
Grudzigdz

Warszewn
Warezawa
Warszewa
Werszawa
Warszawa

Sharax A dirgethy and undirscily
contredled company

ag at
[y b
100,06%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%

8,33%

100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100.00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%

0,00%
100,00%
100,00%

80,00%
100,00%
100.00%
100,00%
100,00%

100,00%

100,00%
100,00%
100,00%

B9,00%

90,50%
100,00%
100,00%

£0,00%
100,00%

00.42%
100,00%

-
as at

3
100,60% Frara 112831 chaga of the businass name to ORLER Unipatrol ae.
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00% Change of company nams {from UAB EWAS) on 14.02.2020
100,00%
On 10.02.2020 PKN romulted 850 shares. On 28.11.2020 rem uliad 187 eharen. On
100,00% 09.12.2020 remulted 3 sharss. After this transactions PKN Orien becams sole
sharsholder of ORLEN Centrum Sarwisows Spz 0.0,
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00% 09.5% owned by PKN ORLEN, remalning part by UMIFETROL, ..
100,00% 86.99% owned by Orien Holding Maka, remaining part by PKN ORLEN S.A.
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
0,00% On 31.12.2020 1420620 Aberta Lid. w as closad down
0,00% Cn 31.12.2020 OneEx Oparalions Parthership was cloasd dow n
40,00%
100,00%
100,00%
80,00%
$00,00%
100,00%
0,00% On 81,12.2020 °X Enargy Nethariands Partnarship .V, waa clcssd town
0,00% On 22.12.2020 FX Energy Netheriande B.V. was ciosed down
0.00% Chenge of company name {from FX Energy Poland Sp. z 0.0.) on 8.04.2020
' ©n 04.12.2020 FX Energy Folend Sp. 2 0.0, w Bevidec]| was closed down
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
84,00%

100 On 11.12.2020 setting up & new company w kh 100% shares interast of Orian Fudnia
,00% 8A.

100,00% On 11.12.2020 setting up a new company w kth 100% shares Interest of Orlen Fucnle
' EA
060,00%
100,00%
100,00%
£0,00%
100,00%
50,00%
80,45%
100,00%
96,00%
100.00% On 24.09.2020 satting up a new com pany with 100% shares Intsrest of PKN ORLY
100,00% On 24.08.2020 setting up a new com pany with 180% shares Intarest of PKN ORLY
100,00% On 18.122020 satting up & naw som pany with 180% aharsa Intarast of PKN ORLY
100,00% On 22.10.2020 setting up & new ooim pany with 100% shares Interast of PKN ORLE
400,00% On 17.12:2020 satting up a new com pany with 180% sharss Interest of PN ORLY
On 30,04.2020 FKN ORLEN purchased 80,01% shares of ENERGA S.A. On
90,92% 20.11.2020 PKN ORLEN purchasad 10,81% shares of ENERGA 3.A. After this
transactions PKN Crlen became owner of 80,02% shares of ENERGA B.A.
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
04,80%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,009
100.00%
100,00%
100,00%
B0,84%
100,00%
64,18%
04,56%
91,24%
100,00%
100,00%
50,00%
84.94% On 23.12.2020 PKN ORLEN purchsasd 64,84% sheros of RUCH S.A.
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
100,00%
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